The UK's Leading
Regeneration Specialist

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

ST. MODWEN

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO



St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report 2010

Welcome to St. Modwen

St. Modwen 1s the UK's leading regeneration
specialist. Over the last 30 years we have built
up a land bank of over 5,700 developable acres
and have transformed the UK landscape via
thoughtfully planned sustainable communities,
mixed-use and town centre schemes, district
centres and business and employment
developments.

Our schemes act as the catalyst for wide scale
comprehensive regeneration n the areas that need
it the most. With each development we seek to
leave a legacy by providing the right physical and
economic infrastructure where businesses and
communities can evolve and develop.

We have a strong presence across the UK and our
diverse property portfolio of over 180 sites means
we are not over exposed to a single scheme, tenant
or sector. This portfolio is largely divided into

three specific areas of focus: income producing,
residential land and commercial land.
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Highlights of 2010

Profit before tax
£31.5m
(2009: loss of £119.4m)

Our return to profit was driven by signifi-

cant progress in property profits and a
recovery 1n valuation gains.

£37.9m

(£73 1m)
Trading profit**

£17.4m
(2009: £8.4m)

Our core rental and other income covers the
running costs of the company and provides
a stable base from which the Group can
maximise Its development activities

£195m

Net assets per share
218p
(2009: 200p)

Net asset value has increased by 9%

251p*

2008 2009 e

Gearing
12%
(2009: 80%)

Our cash flow management has enabled us to
reduce our gearing to 72%

105%

2008 2009 2010

* Ad justed for equity 1ssue (n 2009

** See note 2 of the financial statements

2008 2009 2010

The statutory report of the directors comprises the business review and corporate
governance sections of the annual report and has been drawn up and presented In

accordance with English Company Law

Read more online at
www._stmodwen.co.uk

o
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Business Review Our Strategy

Our strategy is to add value to all land and property assets we

hold by marshalling an extensive bank of development opportunities
and by delivering development schemes across all sectors of the
property market.

THE HOPPER STAGE

Our hopper of future development opportunities comprises over 5,700 * We now have a land bank of
developable acres and 16 Town Centre projects We acquire these 5,736 developable acres of
opportunities in their rawest state, ensuring that we can add maximum :':lhlzcgl?én acres were acquired
value as we work through the planning process towards delivery and

ultimately disposal We aim to replace the land used every year to

enable the Company’s long-term growth

MARSHALLING STAGE 2

Qur development and construction teams, supplemented with skilled » We continued to secure many

external professionals, have a proven track record of marshalling a important planning consents

wide range of projects through the planning process We have particular in 2010, including over 1,400

expertise n site assembly, remediation, master planming and public residential units and over 1

consultatton million sq ft of commercial
space

DELIVERY STAGE 3

With planning permissions secured, schemes are builit-out or the land + We achieved over 50 disposals
sold in response to market conditions Assets are disposed of once no in the year, realising over
further significant value can be added and the capital 1s then recycled £125m with a profit of £21 9m

tnto new schemes, enabling the entire process to begin again
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We also recycle the capital raised from the disposal of those assets
to which we can no longer add value into the acquisition of new

opportunities. This is all underpinned by £525m of income producing
property assets and managed estates.

03
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Our Strategy continued

Share of Portfolio

There are three main areas of
focus for our business, each supported
by our proven strategy.

INCOME PRODUCING PROPERTIES

RESIDENTIAL LAND

A key strand to our business has always been to
acquire and develop land with potential for residential
development Value 1s realised through land sales,
development with joint venture partners and via our
own In-house development team.

KEY FACTS:

Our active land bank 1s underpinned by over
£500m of retained assets and managed estates
that provide us with a regular and secure income
stream whulst we marshal our schemes through the
planning and construction process

KEY FACTS:

¢ Book value — £400m, 1,550 acres

e 24 805 units, 20,724 with a recognised planning
consent of which 3,700 are in London and South

East
See case study on page 14

¢ Book value — £525m

@ Diversified rent roll (1,650 tenants) providing annual
rent of £45 7m

See case study on page 13

COMMERCIAL LAND

Our abtlity to marshal land through the planning
process and offer ‘oven ready’ sites for development
means that we are well placed to take advantage

of a growing demand for pre-let / design and build
opportunities arising from a decreasing supply of
stock

KEY FACTS:

o Book value — £130m, 2,794 acres

o Many large pre-sold construction projects underway

or completing in 2011
See case study on page 19
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Our business activities and our hopper are controlled through a network of seven
regional teams of highly skilled professionals Our regional presence provides

us with national and local knowledge and expertise that keep us in tune with
the needs of the local community and ensures that we remain politically and
economically sensitive to each individual area

At a time of pressure on public finances, we believe our regional presence and
extensive regeneration expertise will prove crucial in building on our established
relationships with Local Authorities across the country who can continue to look to
us to reliably deliver regeneration.

Regional Presence

YORKSHIRE & NORTH EAST

@ NORTH WEST

@ NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE

MIDLANDS @
NORTHERN HOME COUNTIES
SOUTH WEST ® ®
& SOUTH WALES
®
LONDON & SOUTH EAST

For a list of development projects see page 96
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Business Review Chairman’s Statement

“In my final statement to you as Chairman, | am
pleased to report on a strong recovery by your
Company with a return to profit and NAV growth.”

/KQ&@V, Cldoun”_

Anthony Glossop
Chairman
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Dear $harehalder,

in my final statement to you as Chairman and as predicted in cur half
year and interim management statements, | am pleased to be able to
report on a strong recovery by your Company with a return to profit and
NAV growth

Profit before tax was £37 bm (2009 loss of £119 4m) with net asset
value per share growing by 9% to 218p (2009 200p)

These results were driven by significant progress in property profits* to
£21 9m (2009 £7 6m) and a recovery In valuation gains* of £23 Om
{2008 (£122 3m)), of which £17 6m were attributable to asset
management imitiatives, progressing our projects through the planming
and development stages (“marshalling”) and other added value activities

These achievements resulted 1n a 7% increase n our diluted EPRA net
asset value, which now stands at 234p per share (2009 219p), and
helped generate a positive operational cashflow and enabled us to reduce
our gearing to 72% (2009 80%)

Qur actve approach to asset management has led to an increase in
recurnng income and our rent roll, and vacancy levels within our portfolio
have reduced to 12% (2009 17%) Our financial position has been
further improved by active management of our funding requirements,
through adding to and extending our existing banking facihities

Dividends

On the back of this recovery, dividend payments were resumed at the
half year and your Board 1s now recommending a final dividend of 2p
(2009 nib) per ordinary share, making a total distrtbution for the year
of 3p (2009 ml} This final dividend wili be paid on 4th Apnil 2011 to
shareholders on the register on 11th March 2011

Strategy

Our strategy 1s a long-standing and consistent one to add value to
the properties we control through remediation, marshalling, asset
management, development and delivery by our first rate regicnal
teams, focusing on areas where our regeneration and brownfield
expertise enables us to generate profits in commercial and residential
development

Our business model has evolved over many years to ensure that our
longer-term development activities are underpinned by a refiable
recurnng income stream (and capital appreciation) generated by our
portfolio of rent-producing properties These assets are now valued at
over £600m, representing 50% by value of our total portfolio, and ensure
we can progress our developments in a controlled and profitable manner

In addition, we own an extensive landbank (our "hopper") of over
5,700 developable acres, 38% of which comprises land earmarked far
restdential development

During the course of this year, many commentators have focused
therr attention on the prospects for ‘prme’ assets It s therefore
pleasing that we have been able demonstrably to deliver against our
strategy and business medel and record healthy year on year growth
in profits, property valuations and net asset values Qur development
and remediation activity levels have improved, we have continued to
progress our schemes successfufly through the planning process to
ensure a pipeline of future activity and added value, and the hopper
of development opportunuties has increased to record levels through a
programme of selective acquisitions

We are always looking to challenge and improve this strategy

Cur groundbreaking joint venture with Persimmon, which covers
2,000 plots on seven sites, 1s a clear example of how we are able

to extract value (and cash) from the longer-term residential assets in
the hopper, aceelerating the use of our residential land stock and
improving profitability

Directors and Employees

At the foerthcoming Annual General Meeting lan Menzies-Gow will
retire after nine years service, the last two as Senior Independent
Director His robust and incisive contribution to Board debate was
always of the greatest assistance and | would ke to thank him for his
considerable help

It 15 intended that lan will be replaced as Senior Independent Director by
David Garman who Joined us in Apnl 2010 as a non-executive director
David has a broad range of industrial experience both in an executive
and non-executive capactty, which | expect to be of great assistance to
the Company

I will also step down as Chairman at the same time and | would like
to welcome Bill Shannon who joined us 1in November 2010 as my
designated successor He had a long and successful executive career
with Whitbread PLC before establishing himself as a respected
non-executive

We also welcome Michael Dunn as Group Finance Director He joined

in December 2010 to replace Tim Haywood who left us last year after
almost eight years’ service with the Company Mrichael, who joined us
from May Gurney, has extensive experience of working for publicly listed
companies In the construction and outsourcing sectors and will be a
great asset to the Company

The fact that the Company has emerged from the undoubted challenges
of the past three years in such good shape 15 largely due to the expertise
and drive of the Company's employees at ail levels in the organisation
Their dedication and skill has been of the highest order They have been
a pleasure to work with

Prospects

Although the property matket and broader economic prospects remain
uncertain, and the impact of spending cuts has yet to be fully felt, we
are nevertheless confident of the prospects for the Company We have
a long track record of generating value from our tradittonal activities
of regeneration and the proactive management of ‘secondary’ assets,
and the results for the year to 30th November 2010 demonstrate that
we have been able to manage our business and assets through the
global ensis while continuing to progress our portfolio of develepment
projects to ensure the company 1s well positioned to deliver value for our
shareholders

As we look forward, our financial position 1s sound, our business

model will increasingly create value, our valuations are prudent, and
our recurring ncome 1s robust We are also in a good position to seize
attractive opportunities to add further to the hopper, our regional teams
continue to find opportunities to generate value and we are seeing a
gradual recovery of hiquidity 1n our key markets

| am confident that | leave the Company in capable hands and that 2011

will be a year of further progress

*including our share of pint ventures and associales as detaiter in Note 2

Anthony Glossop
Chairman
4th February 2011

"
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Business Review Chief Executive's Review

"“Looking ahead we are confident that St. Modwen's
long-established strategy will once again give us the
opportunity to provide sector leading returns

to shareholders "

Bill Oliver
Chief Executive
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We are proud to be recognised as the UK's leading regeneration
specialist Qur regeneration activities and the complex schemes we
deliver make a real and lasting difference and provide an economic boost
to many depnived areas across the country

Qur return to profit 1s testament to the strength of our business, the

hard work and skill of our employees and our proven strategy of adding
value to the portfolio of properties we own and manage The performance
1s also a result of our regional presence which differentiates us from
many of our competitors and has kept us 1n tune with the needs of local
commumities and businesses It has afso enabled us to continue to
access sites that offer us the potential to apply our expertise to create
value for our shareholders, partners and stakeholders

Qur balanced business model ensures that our development activities
are underpinned by a rehiable recurning income stream from our £5625m
portfolio of rent-producing properties This enables us to fund our cost
base and progress our longer-term regeneration projects in a nisk-averse
and profitable manner

Our extensive and very diverse hopper of over 5,700 developable acres
15 controlled and managed through a network of seven teams across

the UK, comprising highly skilled and experienced professignals This
enables us to adopt a detailed and hands-on approach to all aspects of
our schemes, enabhing us to deliver sector-leading results Our long-
standing emphasts on value creation enables us to deliver more than
market valuation movements for our portfolio, as we marshal assets from
our hopper through the planning process to hugher value uses

There are three main areas of focus for our business, each supported by
our proven business strategy

1 Income producing investments — representing 50% by value of our
portfolio Qur recurnng income, generated from an extensive and
diversified rent roll, enables us to continue to operate profitably,
meeting the running and financing costs of the business

2 Restdential land — 38% by value of our portfolio We acquire and
develop land with the potential for residential devefopment Our asset
management skilis enable us to add value throughout the development
process, realising value through land sales or by development erther
in joint ventures or solely through our in-house development teams
Our skills in driving our landholdings through the planning process,
brownfield land remediation and other aspects of regeneration and
development make us an attractive partner to landowners, local
authorities and central government agencies

3 Commercial land — 12% by value of our portfolio Our abihty to
marshal land through the planning process and offer ‘oven ready’ sites
for development means that we are able to meet occupiers’ demands
swiftly and take advantage of a growing demand for pre-let and design
and build opportunities ansing from a decreasing supply of stock
across the UK

Dur Market

We have witnessed some improvement in market conditions over the last
12 menths Qur broad range and our regional spread of development and
regeneration activities has enabled us to continue to secure business
across a wide vanety of sectors, achieving property sales, including our
share of JVs, of £125m

Qur levels of development actiwnty are still lower than we are used to
histonically but we do compare well to the rest of the marketplace, with a
good programme of activity in place for 2011 and beyond

As we forecast last year, our valuations at 30th November 2010 were
reflective of more stable market conditions after a long period of
uncertainty, with an average positive yield shift of 0 5% The value of
our commercial land has stabilised, while the valuation of our residential
tand has encouragingly recovered a small element of the values
previously written off We believe this may reflect the start of a recovery
in the market for residentral land, as evidenced by the transactions we
have completed during the year and since the year-end

n

Competitive and Regulatory Environment

The lack of readily available finance and the continuing dnive to de-gear
and de-nsk their businesses has restricted many developers’ appetite and
abilhity to compete for new development schemes Speculative development
remains almost non-existent and there are still very few developers who are
both willing to bid for, and able to finance, new schemes

By contrast, in this new competitive landscape, we are operating in

our chosen regional and secondary markets from a posttion of strength
We are 1dentifying an increasing stream of opportunities, both for
acquisitions and for developments which offer clear potential to create
and enbance value for our shareholders As a result, we are able to report
on yet another very successful year for our hopper, which at over 5,700
acres, once again stands at record levels

Despite some of the gloomter forecasts to the contrary, we have also
continued to benefit from the relative resilience of our occupier markets,
underpinned by our own focus on specific active asset management
imitiatives

This year we have been highly successful in both reducing void levels
and wncreasing the rent roll Our secondary retail centres in particular
are continuing to perform strongly, with high occupancy and robust
rental levels We are also seeing an Increased fevel of enquiries for new
development space, with a number of sizeable opportunities now coming
to fruition, for example we are in advanced discussions with Siemens 1n
Lincoln to develop a new 127,000 sq ft manufactuning facility

On face value, the regulatory environment remains cumbersome and
complex However, we remain optimistic that the latest planning process
reforms will not have an adverse impact while local authorities seek to

make sense of therr new-found powers and responsibilities including the
proposed abolition of regional spatial strategies, the repfacement of Regional
Development Agencies with Local Enterprise Partnerships and the merger of
the Housing and Communities Agency with English Partnerships

One of the Company's key skills 1s being able to work our schemes
through the planming system in a responsive and bime-efficient manner
For this reason, the more restrictive a system becomes, the more our
skills are needed, and potentially, the greater the value that 1s created
by our marshalling activities Furthermare, sites with a secured planning
consent {(of which we have many, including 20,724 restdential plots with
a recognised planning status) should command an increasing premium
while the system adjusts to operate in the more efficient way intended

Outlook

Looking ahead, we are confident that St Medwen's long-established
strategy will once again give us the opportunity to provide sector-teading
returns to shareholders

We continue to adopt a cautious, but opportunistic, stance to changing
conditions The expertise and knowledge that we have built up over many
years in diverse markets across the UK will ensure that we are strongly
placed to continue to identify and secure opportunities in the markets
that are most active angd offer the best potential to create value

We have a strong balance sheet and a landbank that is full of latent
value Our development pipeline for 2011 and beyond 1s strengthening
and a number of significant schemes are being marshalled for delivery n
future years

Our asset management capability 1s proving invafuable in maintaining
occupancy and rent levels, and we are confident that we will be

able to continue with the positive progress in this area that we have
demonstrated in the past two years

As a result, we believe that we are well positioned to deliver profit and
net asset value growth 1in 2011, despite the ongoing uncertain market
conditions

Bill Oliver

Chief Executive
4th February 2011
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Business Review Operating and Financial Review

OPERATING REVIEW

Business Mode! and Strategy

QOur established business strategy 1s to add maximum value to the land
and property assets we own through remediation, marshalling, asset
management and development and subsequently to recycle the capital
released on sale into the acquisition of new opportunities

We operate predorminantly tn locations where we are able to offer

value for money to occupiers and undertake substantsal planning or
remediatien activities to transform asset values |t 1s in these locations,
via our regeneration activities, where we can make a positive and lasting
difference by providing the night physical and economic infrastructure for
businesses and communities to evolve and develop Regardless of recent
genenc market commentary, we continue to expenence improving market
conditions for the type of secondary properties in cur portfolio which are
proving remarkably robust in terms of rental and occupation levels

Obtaining control of opportunities through self-financing transactions
has always been part of our hopper strategy This year, our total
expenditure on new acquisitions was only £31m which added 375 acres
of developable land to our portfohio, of which 318 acres were via options
and development agreements As a result, aur hopper now stands at the
record level of 5,736 developable acres This ltandholding 1s very breadly
based, compnsing over 180 separate schemes, across all sectors of the
property market

Hopper analysis {acres)

2010 2009
Developatle
Retall and leisure 368 433
Employment 2,927 2,735
Residential 1,550 1,564
Unspecified 891 872

5,736 5,604

During the past year, we have not undertaken any speculative
development, but have continued to advance sites for development on
the back of pre-let or pre-sold opportunities

Qur strategy of constantly seeking to add value to the properties we
own {whether through asset management, remediation or driving them
through the planming process) has also continued to deliver tangible
progress During the year, we achieved a number of important planning
consents and advanced the status of several of our key schemes,
generating added value gains of £18m {2009 £27m)

We have also continued to dispose of mature assets and those developed
specifically for sale We have completed over 50 disposals n the year
reahising £125m which includes our share of JVs and £22m of disposal
profits, enabling us to reinvest in new long-term oppertunities

Employees

St Modwen's business model 1s based on a hands-on approach it all
areas asset management, marshalling, remediation, construction and
development As a result, the skiil of our people 1s fundamental to our
success Therefore, as we emerge from financially-constrained times,
we will continue to retain and :ncentivise and to grow the abilities of
the talented people who will be the drivers of the Company’s future
expansion
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Financial Ohjectives

St Modwen's financial objectives aver the past year have been to
deliver positive NAV growth and resume dividend payments, to grow the
recurring income, to optimise the Company’s cashflow and financing
position, and to be in the best possible shape to capture new acquisition
or development opportunities

With the stabilisation of property valuations, we are pleased to have
returned to profitability, reporting a profit before tax of £37 5m (2009
£119 4m lossy Our NAV per share has grown 9% to 218p per share and
the EPRA equivalent 7% to 234p (2009 219p) Our recurring gross rent
roll has grown to £45 7m (2009 £43 Om) with vaids reduced to 12%
(2009 17%)

This, and our confidence in the robustness of our net asset value and
our prospects for the coming year, enabled us to resume the payment of
dividends during the year An internim dividend of 1p per share was pawd
in September, and the Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 2p

In the current more cautious market, our business model Is - perhaps
counter-intuitively - particularly appropriate Our prudent approach to
financing, excellent relationships with our key banks and strengthened
balance sheet following the Placing and Placing and Open Offer in 2009
has given us a stable financial footing and ensured we have significant
capacity for growth as market conditicns improve

The Company 15 trading within all its banking covenants and our forward
projections show a continuation of that position

A further key objective for the year was to renew and extend the matunty
of our banking facibties to ensure that sufficient funding remarned in
place for the Company's medium-term requirements We have realised
this aim and renewal dates for the majonty of our existing facilities have
been extended to 2014/15 with no changes to the existing terms and
condibions The earliest sigmificant matunty date is now September 2012
and the weighted average matunty of the Group's facihities at the date of
this report 1s now 3 7 years (November 2009 3 O years}

Income Producing Investments

Hands-on asset management 1s a very significant part of our business
model Qur regional teams have been very active during the period,
working closely with tenants to mitigate the impact on our rent roll of the
current difficult market conditions The effect of asset disposals, tenant
failures and vacations was more than offset by our successes in letting
void space and newly-completed developments giving us an overall
increase in net rental iIncome

The benefit of this pragmatic and hands-on approach 1s shown by

the fact that our like-far-like gross rent roll has increased by £1 9m

to £45 7m since 30th November 2009 Thus reflects our success in
achieving £7 8m of new lettings to offset rent lost of £5 7m due to
vacations and £0 2m due to tenant failures in the peniod This activity
has enabled us to reduce our overall portfohio void to 11 8% and reduce
the level of unsold stock to £66 3m

Rental income by sector

While we may see continued pressure on our netf rents in 2011, as
the macro-econemic conditions continue to give rise to increased
unemployment and a reduction in consumer spending, our rents are
at the affordable end of the scale We believe this will provide some
insulation from the effect of further tenant failures

13

Case Study
Income Producing —
ETP Portfolio

We have purchased zan eleven-site portfolio of industnial estates
for £21 4m from Cit1 Property Investors With a rental income of
£2 2m, this represents a net inttial yield of 10 3%

The portfolio comprises 610,000 sq. ft of mult-let industrial
assets located throughout the Midlands and North of England,
including Birmingham, Sheffield and Stoke-on-Trent [t includes
75 occupational leases, let to 60 tenants, with a vord level of 3%

In hine with our hustness strategy, it 1s our intention to retam these
sites for income until we maximise their value I[ncome raised from
their disposal will he invested into other development projects,

land acquisition or the purchase of other iIncome producing assets
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Business Review Operating and Financial Review continued

Income producing ivestments — key highlights duning the year
* Dunng the year we acquired the ETP portfoho, an eleven-site portfolio of
industrial estates (see page 13 for case study)

* Testament to the fact that well located and well managed secondary
retail property can prove to be a rehiable investment 15 the Elephant
and Castle Shopping Centre in London The Centre now comprises 82
tenants and occupancy has increased from 93% to 98% during 2010
As a result of 15 new lettings and lease renewals, the net rent receivable
has increased by 3 2% during the year to £3 8m per annum

Outlook

We continue to seek opportunities to add to our income producing
portfolio Our regional presence, flexible funding and appetite for assets
that generate income but have the potential for future development 1s
enabling us to move quickly which provides us with an advantage n the
current marketplace We anticipate acquinng further income producing
assets at attractive yields, and believe that our active asset management
will continue to add value

Residential Land

The gradual recovery of the residential market, and the consequent
erosion of housebuilders’ landbanks and housing stock levels has seen a
re-emergence of demand for residential land, particularly for our type of
‘oven-ready’ consented sites that can be brought quickly into production

This 1s demonstrated by our disposat of 40 acres during the year and the
signing of the strategic joint venture with Persimmon to develop an instial
seven sites This JV will unlock considerable value and cash from our
residential land bank as well as delivering development profit from house
sales

As an example of our acquisition activity in the year, we have concluded
an agreement with Branston Properties Ltd to acquire, subject to
planning, a 280 acre site near Burton-upon-Trent We anticipate the site
being brought forward for a mixed use development of 500 new homes
and 650,000 sq ft of employment space

Marshalling
The planning posttion on our residential land bank i1s now
Planmng status
Nov 10 Nov 09

Acres Units Acres Units
Allocated n local plan
or similar 309 6,550 231 6,134
Resolution to grant
permission 39 806 323 5,230
Outline permission granted 794 12,239 517 7,887
Detatled permission granted 68 1,129 32 833
Sub-total 1,210 20,724 1,103 20,084
No planning recognition 340 4,081 440 4,956
TOTAL 1,550 24,805 1,543 25,040

Case Study
Residential Land —
Persimmon JV

In August 2010, we entered 1nto a jotnt venture with Persimmon
PLC mitiaily to develop 2,000 homes on seven of our sites across
the country

— Goodyear, Wolverhampton

— Glan Liyn, Newport, South Wales (pictured)
— Pallion New Road, Sunderland

— Whessoe Road, Darlington

— Longbnidge East, Birmingham

— Long Marston, Warwickshire

— Coed Darcy, Neath, South Wales

It 15 expected that the development across 120 acres of land will
take up to five years to complete and will have an end value of
over £300m Further schemes may he added to the joint venture as
planning permission 15 obtatned by St. Modwen

We are already making good progress with the joint venture
and have recently submitted detaifed planning applications at
the former Goodyear site in Wolverhampton and at Glan Liyn in
Newport, South Wales We will shortly submit applications at
Darhington, Sunderland and Longhndge East
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Planning progress — key highlights during the year
e Two sites at Longbridge and Weston-Super-Mare have received detailed
planning consent for residential development totalling 215 new
homes With the benefit of HCA funding, demonstrating our ability
to actively manage development without major use of our own funds,
these sites are being developed directly by the Company under its
house-building brand, St Modwen Homes

= South Ockendon, Essex — we received outline planning permisston for
650 homes on a 31 acre former car factory which we acquired from
Ford 1n 2006 This scheme will form a key part of the delivery of new
housing in the Thames Gateway region

In addition, the foltowing major ptanning applications are being
progressed in 2011

s Mill Hitl — as part of a consortium with neighbouring landowners,
we have submitted plans for a comprehensive development of our
83 acre former MoD site compnsing 2,174 new homes, 11,800 sq ft
of new retatl, 37,000 sq ft of commercial space, a GP surgery, an
energy centre and two primary schools

* Uxbridge — plans for the extensive development of this 108 acre
former MoD site includes 1,373 new homes, 31,000 sq ft of new
retail and 145,000 sq ft of new office space, together with a 77 bed
retirement home, a 1,200 seat theatre, a 6,300 sq ft community /
museum use, an energy centre, a GP surpery, a 90 bed hotel and three
prnimary schools, for which outhine planning was granted in January
2011

15

Dehvery and disposal — key examples

One of the key transactions during the year was the signing of a joint
venture agreement with Perssmmon PLC to develop 2,000 homes on
seven of our sites The structure of the JV accelerates the realisation of
value from our hopper, and also enables us to share in the future value
of the houses built We anticipate that the transaction will be cash
positive for us in 2011, and will remain so throughout the duration of
the JV (see page 14 for case study)

We have sold 29 acres of residential land for a total consideration of
£40 5m at values equal to, or ahead of book value 20 acres at the
former MoD site at Bentley Priory, Stanmore to Barratt Developments,
four acres at Haywards Heath to Crest Nicholson and five acres at
Newton le Willows to Jones Homes

Qutlook

Qur ability to be flexibte and innovative gives us confidence that we wall
continue to unlock the value from our substantial and diverse landbank
Qur developments in progress should generate increases in NAV over the
coming years while our landbank should prove a valuable long-term asset
as the housing market recovery accelerates

Commercial Land Development

In line with the rest of the market, we are not currently undertaking any
speculative development MHowever, our regtonal structure enables us to
continue to dnive cur land holdings through the planning process and
offer occuprers 'oven ready” sites for development means that we are well
placed to take advantage of the resulting and growing demand for pre-let
and design and build opportunities

Our brownfield remediation expertise makes us an attractive proposition
to landowners who trust us implicitly to remove the risk from their sites
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Acquisitions — key examples during the year

+ Hednesford — a vehicle component factory from ATP industries Group, in
a deal which unlocks the development potential of the £50m Hednesford
Gateway scheme in Cannock Chase, Staffordshire (see page 19 for case
study)

* Crawley - an option to acquire, subject to planning, a 100 acre site at
Copthom adjacent to the M23 near Crawley and Gatwick for employment-
led development

Pianning progress — key tughlights

* Exeter — outhne planning consent has been obtained for our £120m
Skypark development near Exeter Airport, together with detailed
consent for the first phase Funded by the Low Carbon Infrastructure
Fund of HCA, the innovative first phase 1s set to comprise a £20m
Energy Centre — the first of its kind on this scale tn the UK - which
will be run by E ON, and which will provide sustainable energy for the
entire scheme and the neighbounng community of Cranbrook

Longbridge Town Centre — Proposals have been submilted for the
£70m next phase of the town centre which mclude 80,000 sq ft of
retal! space, a major 85,000 sq ft foodstore, an hotel and 40 two-
bedroom apartments, together with community space access roads and
continued local road improvements to jotn the town centre with the
newly-built £66m Bournville College

Delivery and disposal — Kkey examples
Some of the principal disposals, which were all made at or above book
value, n the period were

* Catford Shopping Centre and parade of shops - seld to Lewisham
Borough Council for £11 5m

* The Malis, Basingstoke — our joint venture, KPI, sold its 65% share in
this 300,000 sq ft shopping centre to Basingstoke & Deane Borough
Councit (who owned the remaining 35%) for £15 3m

Key employment schemes include

* The 300,000 sq ft waste treatment and recycling facility at Avonmouth
for New Earth Solutions 1s on target for completion n Spring 2011

+ Works have also commenced on the construction of the pre-sold 48,000
sq ft office complex for Manchester City Council in Wythenshawe

We have also made sigmificant progress on a number of important town
centre, retai and pubhic sector schemes

* Wembley — Cur Wembley Central scheme will provide 135,000 sq it
of retail and leisure space, tegether wath 117 private apartments and
85 affardable homes already completed on site Dunng 2010, 23,000
sq ft of office space in Ramsey House was refurbished, the fitting out
of the first phase of 117 apartments was completed, of which 50 have
been sold or let, Co-Op have completed a lease on 10,000 s ft and
will commence trading in March 2011, and terms have been agreed
with Travelodge for a new 86 bed hotel

* We have completed the 72,000 sq ft retail scheme at Connah's Quay,
Flintshire including a new 52,000 sq ft Morrisons food store which
commenced trading in November 2010 Over 300 new jobs have been
created at the Ffordd Llanarth site, which has attracted lettings from a
wide range of national retailers including Greggs, Bargain Booze, Just
Go Travel, and Home Bargains

* We completed and handed over the 150,000 sq ft Warwickshire
College at our Rugby site in teme for the first intake of students in
September 2010 Work 1s also progressing on schedule and budget
towards completion of the flagship six storey 250,000 sq ft £66m
Bournville College at Longbridge to be opened to over 10,000 students
in September 2012

Outlook

Our developments in progress should continue to generate value While we
do not foresee returning to speculative development in the near future, our
regional presence 1s enabling us to find development opportunities that
can be satisfied by our existing landbank We are currently in negotiations
to secure a number of opportunities that should enable us to continue to
create value and generate good profits over the next few years
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Income statement

Our business model 1s based on core rental and cther income cavering
the running costs of the Company (property outgoings, overheads and
interest), which provides a stable base from which the Group can
maximise its development activities

Trading profit (Em)

2010 2009
Net rental income 337 335
Property profits 219 76
Other iIncome 31 18
Admunistrative expenses a7 1) (14 1)
Bank interest (24 2) (20 4)
Trading Profit 174 84

{see Naote 2 cf the financial statements}

Net rental income
During the course of the year we have focused on our asset management
activity 1n order to safeguard our future rental returns

At 30th November 2010 the hke-for-like gross rent roll, including

our share of rent from joint ventures, had increased from £43 Om to

£45 7m At the year-end our overall voids had been reduced considerably
to 12% (2009 17%) Furthermore we have increased our weighted
average lease length to 5 1 years (2009 4 3 years)

Property profits

Property profits, including our share of joint ventures, were £21 9m
{2009 £7 6m), with significant contrnibutions from our remediation
contracts with BP at Coed Darcy and Baglan Bay, a number of pre-let and
pre-sold developments (including for Manchester City Council, New Earth
Solutions, Mornisons and Bournwville and Rugby Colleges), as well as the
disposal of residential land

Property valuations

All of our tnvestment properties (including land) are valued every six
months by King Sturge LLP at market value, and our work in progress
15 also independently assessed, where appropriate, for any impairment

155Ues
Property portfolio (Em)
2010 2009
Residential land 400 339
Commercial land 130 155
Income producing
Retail 194 197
Offices 60 63
Industrial 2n 253
Total 1,055 1,007
+ including the Group s share of joint ventures and associates {excluding minimum lease
payments}

+ valuatron numbers include tnvestment properttes and legally owned properties held in
1nventary (except for those inventory properties already contracted for transfer under the
Project MoDEL agreements)

The valuation of our investment properties refiects both market
movements and the value added by our own activities, including the
achievement of marshalling milestones in the planning process The
calculation of this added value reflects the present value of future cash
flows, based on existing land prices and the current best estimate of
costs to be incurred
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2010 was another year of uncertainty in the real estate investment
market, but one 1n which values recovered some of the losses of the
previous two years Qur valuations at 30th November 2010 reflect a
stabilised secondary property market, with our investment property
valuations having increased overall by £29m (3%) duning the year

In the first half of the year, we saw the gradual return of some real

estate investor appetite and an increasing level of housebuilding

actiuity, resuiting in an overall uphift of £24m In the second half,

these trends had stabilised and both investment yields and underlying

land values were more stable with a movement of £6m Throughout

the year, we produced significant gains through our marshalling and

asset management efforts which added value to the underlying market ‘
movements, the beneficial impact of this can be seen n the table below ‘

Investment property valuation mavements (Em)*

2010 2009
H1 H2 Total Total
Market value movement 9 2 1 (134)
Marshalling and asset
management 15 3 18 27
Total 24 5 29 {107}

*including the Group's share of pint ventures and a25sociates

The valuatien of our residential land portfolio was thoroughly market-
tested dunng the year by the sale of land and the formation of the joint
venture with Persimman over a further seven sites 1n all cases, our
carrying values were proven by these market transactions Furthermore,
our abihty via this Persimmon JV to participate in the future
housebuilding profits implies that there 15 a further stream of value to
come from this portfolio which has not yet been fully recogmised

Of the overall investment property valuation movements of £29m, our ‘

valuers consider that over 60%, or £18m, 1s due to value added by .

our own management of the assets This 1s an achievernent consistent

with our expectations and one that gives us confidence in our future

valuations i
I
|
|

Admuimstrative expenses

We continue to maintain close control over underlying costs  Underlying
recurring costs have remained stable We have, however, incurred £2 2m
of restructuring costs in the year as we rationalised our properties and
reorganised our internal legal structure 1n ine with approved tax planning
activittes Due to the successful outcome to the year we have also re-
introduced the staff bonus scheme

As a consequence of the factors above, admimistrative expenses
(including our share of joint ventures) have moved during the year to
£17 1m (2009 £14 1m)

Jomnt ventures and associates

Qur share of the post tax results of jont ventures and associates I1s
shown on the income statement as one net figure A full analysis of the
underlying details is disclosed 1n Note 10 The principal jotnt venture
in which the Group 1s involved 1s Key Property investments Limited,
which recorded a profit of £16 6m of which our share was £8 3m
{2009 £22 1m loss)

Finance costs and income

Net finance charges (including our share of joint ventures) have reduced
to £26 4m (2009 £26 7m) The level of charges was due {o the
following principal factors lower borrowing levels, reduced mark-to-
market costs, partly offset by increased borrowing costs
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As aresult of low and stable interest rates and the renegotiating of some
of our hedging contracts (at zero cost) with our banks, the revaluation

of our interest rate swap contracts (which have a weighted average cost
before margin of 4 6%) to market value at year-end resulted 1n a net
credit to the Income Statement of £0 tm (2009 charge £5 Sm)

The impact of the renegotiation of our banking covenants mid way
through 2009 was to increase the weighted average margin on our
facilities by 113 basis points to 199 basis paints

Net finance charges also include a charge of £1 6m (2009 £0 2m) for
the amortisation of the discounted deferred constderation payable to the
MaD in respect of Project MoDEL

During 2010, the Group continued to expense all interest as it has
ansen, and has not capitalised any interest on its developments or its
investments

Profit before tax

With the stabilisation of property valuations, we are pleased to have
returned to profitability, reporting a profit before tax of £37 5m
(2009 £119 4m loss)

Taxation and profits after tax
The effective tax credit for the year, including cur share of jotnt ventures,
15 £0 8m (2009 £17 7m)

This rate is substantially lower than the standard rate of UK Corporation
Tax due to the uvtihsation of previous years' tax losses and allowances

It 1s anticipated that, with the continued utilisation of these losses and
of other tax allowances, and the benefit in future years of approved tax
planning activitres, the effective rate of tax on future profits wilt be lower
than the standard rate of UK Corporation Tax

Benefit from tax planning activities 1s only recogrised when the outcome
15 reasonably certain

Taking nto account these tax rates, profit after tax has risen to £38 3m
(2009 loss of £101 7m)

Financial Structure

Financing

Following the refinancing of the business in 2009, we continue

to pperate well within our banking covenants and have substantial
headroom within our existing facilities to cover all of our current and
proposed development and acquisition pregrammes

We have also taken a number of steps during the year to renew and
extend our banking facilities During the financral year we renewed
facilities with Barclays, Royal Bank of Scotland and Bank of Ireland
Following the year-end, but before the date of this report, we have

also renewed faciities with HSBC and put in place a new facility with
S$antander, further increasing the weighted average expiry to 3 7 years at
the date of this report (November 2002 3 O years) This has been done
with no matenal impact on borrowing costs

The Company’s cash flow was again an area of significant focus during
the year as we realised £93m from our ongoing programme of asset
disposals This, together with our recurnng net rental income and

close management of our working capital, enabled us to meet our
admimistrative expenses, interest, and a £11 1m development and capital
expenditure programme, whilst delivening a net reduction in borrowings
from trading cash flows

The following table shows an additional analysis of the operational cash
flow of the business

Cperaticnal cashflow (£m)

2010 2009
Net rent 264 261
Property disposals 929 1009
Praperty acquisitions {30 5) (12 9)
Capita! expenditure (80 1) 79 7)
Working capital and other movements 339 (6 3)
Qverheads, interest and tax (36 5) 27 0)
Net cash inflow/{cutflow) 61 11

{see Note 2 of the financial statements)

We now have total Group facilittes of £639m (2009 £519m) Year-end net
debt 1s £315m (2009 £319m), giving us gearing of 72% (2009 80%)
and headroom of aver £200m to meet future commitments Including joint
ventures, total banking facihities are £784m (2009 £764m), net debt 1s
£504m (2009 £527m) and gearing I1s 94% (2009 106%)

The matunty of both hedges and facilities is aligned with individual
schemes where applicable Following the repayment of £101 6m of
borrowings after the equity 1ssue dunng 2009, the amount of our debt at
fixed rates rose to 99% and 1s currently 98% This will gradually reduce
during 2011 as a number of the hedging contracts mature We are
keeping our hedging positions under review

Covenanls
We are operating well within the covenants that apply to our banking
facihties These are

+ net assets must be greater than £250m {actual £437m),
+ geanng must not exceed 175% (actual 72%), and

= nterest cover ratio (which excludes non-cash items, such as
revaluation movements) must be greater than 1 25x (actual 1 8x)

Although current economic conditions still have an element of
uncertainty, we have considered availlable market information, consuited
with our advisers and applied our own knowledge and experience to the
Group's property portfolio As a result of this, we believe covenant levels
are more than adequate for our worst-case scenartos

Financial statistics and key performance indicators

2010 2009
Net Borrowings £315m £319m
Gearing T2% 80%
Geaning, incl share of JV debt 94% 106%
Average debt matunty 37 years 3 O years
Interest cover 1 8x 17x
Balance Sheet
Net assels

At the year end, net asset value per share was 218p, an increase of 18p
(9%) In common with cther property companies, we also use the diluted
EPRA NAV measure of net assets which analysts also use in comparning
the relative performance of such compames The adjustments required
to arrnive at our adjusted net assets measure are shown in the following
table

EPRA adjusted net assets per share were 234p at 30th November 2010,
an increase of 15p {7%) in the year
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Net assets (Em)
2010 2009

Net assets, beginning of year 4010 402 2
Issue of new shares — 1016
Profit/{loss) after tax 383 (101 7)
Dividends pard (20) —
Other (0 5) {11)
Net assets, end of year 4368 4010
Deferred tax on capital allowances 94 180
and revaluations
Mark-to-market of interest rate swaps 167 193
Fair value of inventories 53
Diluted EPRA NAV— total 468 2 438 3

— per share 234p 219p
Investment properties

The total value of investment properties under our control, including
100% of Joint ventures, increased by £66m dunng the year to £1,101m
(2009 £1,035m)

The independent valuations duning the year-ended 30th November 2010
resulted in net revaluation gains, including our share of joint ventures,
of 3% (E£29m), compared with the previous year-end QOur properties are
currentiy valued at the following weighted average yields

Weighted average yields

Equivalent Net inttial
2010 2009 2010 2009
Retail 86% 99% 7 4% 84%
Office 90% 87% 71% 57%
Industrial 92% 9 4% 7 4% 8 4%
Total 90% 9 5% 7 4% B 0%

Inventories

Inventories have reduced in the year from £193m to £173m, reflecting
the completion of the development programme started in previgus years
(including £88m relating to Project MoDEL) and the effect of disposals
or transfers into vestment properties of completed schemes Assets
held in inventories principally comprise development projects that are on
site and under construction and have not been pre-sold, and other assets
that are held for resale at the penod end

Assets held in inventories are not included in the annual valuation,

but are assessed for impairment and net realisable value issues using
independent external advice where appropriate As a result, we have
wntten down certain of our assets for resale and work in progress balances
to reflect thewr net realisable value in current market conditions The total
provided in the year amounted to £6 1m in the Group and £0 3m in joint
ventures

Penston scheme

Our defined benefit pension scheme continues to be fully funded on

an IAS19 basis The next tnenmal valuation 1s due 1n 2011 but as the
scheme 1s closed to new entrants and closed to future accrual we do not
anticipate any significant increase in scheme contributions

Frnancial Outlook

Our business 1s 1n a robust financial position Active management of out
portfolio 1s enabling us to generate profits, our valuations are prudent
and our financial structure is solid We are continuing to recycle our
portfolio and generate cash and this, together with the headroom in our
financia! structure, enables us to continue to invest in opportunities that
offer the potential to create and enhance sharehelder value

Given the opportunities in the current markets this gives us a sound
platform for future growth
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Case Study
Commercial Land —
Hednesford, Cannock

In 2004 we were selected as preferred developer by Cannock
Chase Dustrict Councif to redevelop two Town Centre sites in
Hednesford, totalling 13 acres

The £50m retail-led scheme, known as Hednesford Gateway, 1s set
to be one of the most significant projects in the town's mstary and
comprises two phases Known as Rugeley Road and Victona Street

Rugeley Road — an 8 8 acre site will be anchored by an 80,000
sq ft foodstore, with associated car parking alengside 38,000 sq
ft of non-food retail units and community facthties

Victona Street — a 4 6 acre site will be anchored by a 16,900
s ft. discount foodstore, with 7,500 sq ft of retail umits and

an additional 5,650 sq ft of additional retall space within the
town centre The town’s existing Bingo Club and Dnill Hall will be
relocated to this site

Progress to date includes securing planning permissien for
Rugeley Road and we have already started to unlock the
development potential of this part of the site, having purchased

a factory from ATP Industries Group which will be demolished i
2011 Censtruction works to the new 80,000 sq ft foodstore are
due to start in 2011

Regarding Victoria Street, planning permission has aiready heen
secured and we have commenced ground investigation works
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Corporate Governance Corporate Social Responsibility

INTRODUCTION

Regeneration goes beyond bricks and mortar, 1t 15 about breathing new
life into areas that need it the most and bringing about positive and
genutne changes to communities, the environment and the economy
ahke Therefore, we take Corporate Social Responsibility (YCSR™) very
seriously and ensure 1t forms an integral part of what we do

Our CSR activities are grouped into three specific areas
— Sustainability and the Environment

— Community and Economy

— Charities and Awards

SUSTAINABILITY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Environmental intbiatives

We are always looking at ways in which we can support or instigate

local imtiatives that bring benefit to our sites and the surrounding
environment Where possible, we seek to involve the local commumnity in
these imitiatives which not only helps to bwld understanding and trust in
our work but makes development more accessible

CRYMLYN BURROWS, SOUTH WALES

At Crymlyn Burrows in South Wales, a Site of Special Scientific
Interest, and part of the 2,500 acre former BP Portfolio we acquired
in 2009, we joined marine biologists, Oakley International, local
school chaldren and other community volunteers in a search for
shark, skate and ray egg cases along this important strip of Welsh
coastline This work 1s crucial to the Shark Trust, faciitating wital
research into these elusive breeds of fish

As part of the same initiative, a special beach clean-up to remove
hiter from the beach and surrounding areas was camed out This
followed pubhication of a Marine Conservation Society Beachwatch
Report claiming that rubbish found on 73 Welsh shorelines was up
by 21% on the previous year

Waste management

Our principal aim when dealing with waste 1s to reduce our rehance on
landfill sites and ensure that we introduce effective waste management
systems across all sttes built directly by us For those projects delivered
by contractors and subcentractors on our behalf, we cnly employ
comparies who comply with our strict criteria for dealing with waste
management

WARWICKSHIRE COLLEGE

The development of the new Warwickshire College and the access
road to this 82 acre site 1s a typical example of our approach to
waste management Here, we instigated a nigorous process that led
to only 4% of the waste produced being sent to landfitl

To facilitate the process, we appointed one company who would
control the waste management for the entire site All contractors
and subcontractors were instructed to use this company only

Waste was segregated into six channels, inert matter, wood waste,
cardboard/paper, scrap metal, plastic and general waste and a total
of 10,000 m* was produced, of which 96% was retained on-site and
re-used withsn the site for structural fill

Sustainable buidings

We look for the most enviranmentally effective solutions for our occupters
In terms of the whole hife cost of a buillding and take several factors

into consideration These range from the use of renewable materals,
employment of specific design standards and employing a highly skilled
team of sustainability advisors who ensure that we are always using the
most techmically advanced and efficient sustainabifity techmques

We welcome the intreduction of the code for sustainable homes and
understand that beyond reducing carbon dioxide ermissions, we need
to deliver buildings in a way that minimises their other environmental
impacts such as the water they use, the waste they generate and the
matenals they are built from

We also encourage innovative energy saving measures across afl of
our sites which have broader positive implications for the surrounding
communities and regrons as a whole
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Remediation and reclamation

Remediation, or the preparation of land for development, 1s perhaps the
most important part of the regeneration cycle, allowing for disused sites
to be brought back to hfe and mimmising development on greenfield
land

Almost 100% of our building activity takes place cn brownfield sites and
we adopt a thorough and ruthless approach to remediation which ensures
that the land 1s cleaned up extensively before any development occurs

Similtarly, across our entire portfolio, over 95% of all waste and matenals
either reclaimed on-site or created due to demolition works are retained
and re-used as part of the development This approach ensures we avoid
any unnecessary off-site disposal, reduce our reliance on fandfill and
minimise the need for mining for new matenals

GOODYEAR SITE, WOLVERHAMPTON

65,500 sqm of former factory slabs, yard areas and foundations were
grubbed up and removed to enable the redevelopment of the
Phase 1 area to be imitiated

Relic sub-surface infrastructure compnising structures extending
to depths in excess of 6m below ground level were excavated
and removed

Oul contarmnated soils resulting from historical site operations were
delineated, excavated and treated on-site under license

Re-profiling works across Phase 1 of the site comprised
the excavation, validation, laying and compaction of ‘site won® soils

1,259 tonnes of asbestos tmpacted soils were identified, excavated
and processed under strnict environmental hicensed control conditions

Former site tip contents were segregated, processed and validated
for reuse within the redevelopment

Oil impacted perched water was removed from excavations and
relic sub-surface infrastructure

Environmental monitoring and control measures were implemented
throughout the works comprising the sampling of arr, sotls, recycled
matenals and water

23

So far, the remed ation efforts have restricted landfill consumption
significantly and almost 100% of all material generated during the pre-
development and remediation works has been retained on site for reuse

with another 50 acres of site to prepare for development, this

su

stainable remedtation approach s being continued with the support of

both Wolverhampton City Council and the Environment Agency

>

Qur regeneration of the S0 acre former Goodyear site in
Wolverhampton into an £80m mixed-use community 1s a classic
example of how we deal with remediation and reclamation on-site

Prior to commencing any redevelopment warks, we carried out
extensive environmental and geotechnical assessments of the site
which revealed the histenc tyre manufactuning processes had resulted
In localised contamtnation to the ground and to the groundwater
beneath the site A three acre on-site tip was also uncovered which
had been used to dispose of industrial waste

Upeon discovery of these elements, we immediately developed
a detailed remediation strategy and validation plan that was |
subsequently agreed with Wolverhampton City Council and the

Environment Agency

Phase 1 of the remediation works covered an imitial 16 acres and
compnised slab/foundation removal, re-profiling earthworks, treatment
of hydrocarbon impacted soils and groundwater, processing and
treatment of asbestes contaminated soils and processing of buried
industrial waste matenals for re-use wathin the site

Approximately 30,000 tonnes of concrete was generated by
these works, this material was crushed to 6f1 and 612
specifications for roadway construction and reuse within the
build platform

Approxmately 35,000 tonnes of concrete was generated by
these works, this matenial was crushed to a 62 specification
for reuse within the redevelopment

Approximately 4,000 tonnes of soils treated by bio-remediation
methods, this material was validated and integrated beneath
the build platform

Approximately 16,000 tonnes of soils was excavated, |
environmentally and geotechnically classified and reused ‘
to form the redevelopment profile |

760 tonnes of soils were recovered following processing and
integrated beneath the redevelopment footprint

Approximately 25,000 tonnes of materal was recovered for
reuse to achieve required formation levels withen the
development

1 2m litres of water was recovered during the works
and pre-treated prior to discharge to foul sewer

in excess of 500 environmental samples were obtained during
the successful completian of the works
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Sustatnability targets

We remain committed to reducing our carbon footprint Until the Government has produced clear guidance on the future of the Carbon Reduction
Commitment Energy Scheme, we will continue to monitor and measure our Ce, emissions and investigate appropriate mitigation measures right
across our portfolio

To ensure our commitment to sustainability 1s both real and ewidenced, we have in place a series of sustainability targets and continue to demonstrate
smprovernent across the board every year

Sustainability 2010 target 2010 achieved 2009
Remediated matenals re-used or recycled 91 96 as
Demolition products retained for retention on-site or recychng a1 as 94
Construction project waste re-used or recycled 60 75 75
Energy consumption better than required by building regulations* nfa wa** 100
Butlding projects with at least 10% of power from a renewable energy source 8% 17% 33%
Schemes with water usage reduction technologies 100 100 100
Schemes with water recycling technology 30 33 36

* on speculative projects in excess of 50,000 sq ft for industrial bulldings and 25 000 sq ft for offices

** no speculative projects have been constructed during 2010

Re-using and presenving buildings In particular, 1t 1s our duty to retain any buildings with historical
Recyching buildings reduces the environmental impact of development and significance or that play an tmportant part in a site or area's hernitage
h lish h

;ltirefore we only demolish those that no longer add any value (o a specific Similarly, with our larger sites, we try to use land that i1s not currently

under development for other uses such as car parking, car storage and
hosting any community events

BENTLEY PRIORY

St Modwen, as part of its VSM Estates joint venture, has sup-
ported the preservation of Bentley Priory, famous for its pivotal role
as Fighter Command Headquarters durning the Battle of Britain in
World War Two

VSM Estates was granted detailed planning and listed building
consent by Harrow Council in 2008 for 1ts sensitive redevelopment
The site has now been sold to Barratt Homes, who will build the
majonty of new homes at the site, together with City & Country who
will develop the new homes and museum within the Priory building

As part of this development, St Modwen agreed that circa £8 5m
would be made available to create, maintain and run the Battle of
Britain Museum in the Grade H* listed mansion house The museum
will educate future generations about the umique hentage and
significance of Bentley Pnory to the nation and allow 1ts historic
rooms to be open to the public for the first time in 80 years The
museum will also pay respect to the bravery and sacrifice of RAF
pilots and ground staff who helped turn the tide against Naz
Germany during World War Two
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COMMUNITY AND ECONOMY

Initiatives

Whether 1t 15 supporting a crime awareness day at a London shopping
centre or donating money to a local nature reserve 1n Yorkshire, we make
sure that all of the imtiatives in which we get involved create real value
for the community and make development more accessible

WARWICKSHIRE COLLEGE, RUGBY

To make way for the new £30m Warwickshire College at our site

In Rugby, we were required to move an existing War Memonal to
another part of the site Acutely aware of the sensitive nature of this
work, we ensured the Ex-Servicemen’s Association was involved in
this process from the very start

To symbolise the relocation of the memonal, it was agreed that on
Remembrance Day a ceremony would be held and a time capsule,
created by local school children, would be buried beneath the
memonial alongside an existing time capsule dating back to just
after Werld War One In doing so, young and old were united in
celebrating the lives of ex-servicemen on this very important day

25

Public realm

We know from experience that a httle extra attention to detail can make
all the difference to a new development Placing special focus on pubhic
realm goes a long way 1n making the communities we build a more
pleasant place to live, work and relax Whether supporting a specially
commussioned work of art in Manchester, sponsoning a tree planting
exercise \n South Wales or spensoring a photegraphy competition in
Edmonton Green, through public realm we seek to inshill a special sense
of pride in the area

CONNAH'S QUAY, FLINTSHIRE

We recently completed the development of 2 52,000 s5q ft
Morrison’s supermarket at our £15m Quay Shopping Centre scheme
in Connah's Quay, Fhintshure To celebrate the new face of Connah's
Quay, we donated £20,000 towards the creation of a prece of public
art

Loca! councillors and school children sat on an art panel that
eventually commissioned a sculpture made of ¢ld shopping trolleys
Known as ‘Spint of the Quay’, the sculpture acknowledges the
town’s long association with its steel works whilst also pointing
towards the development of the new shopping centre
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Social Inclusion and job creatton

Our regeneration projects and development activities breathe new life
into neglected communities and transform disused brownfield sites into
green and pleasant places to live and work This makes us a key driver
of regional ecenomic growth and means that we play a major role in
creating thousands of Job opportunities for people across the UK

HRH The Prince of Wales at Coed Darcy in 2010

We seek to employ local contractors to carry out works across

our projects and use sustarnable building techniques wherever
possible to ensure that our sites are at the forefront of sustainable
development For example, at Coed Darcy in South Wales, we

are working closely with The Prince’s Foundation for the Built
Environment to ensure that local skills and local materials are being
used when developing the site In June 2010 HRH The Prince of
Wales visited Coed Darcy and met with many local tradesmen who
were showcasing their skills at a specially organised event The
Prince was then taken on a tour of the developed areas of the site to
see sustainable development in practice

We also seek to promote the growth of new businesses through the
development of our innovation centres which are designed to encourage
SMEs, growing businesses angd specific sectors, In vanous areas across
the UK Each centre provides an environment where these businesses
can evolve and develop They provide flexible leases and a full range of
ready made business services

We are rolling out a senes of these centres as part of our national
regeneration programme and work closely with Local Authonties in each
area to ensure that they are in hine with focal demand We have already
buiit three — in Cranfield, Longbridge and Blackburn — where over 200
businesses are now working and flounshing Further centres are planned
in Exeter and Weston-super-Mare

Community consultation

With the Localism Bill featuring high on the Governmeant’s agenda,

1t 15 our responsibility to ensure that we seek to engage with local
communities on as many levels as possible so that they have a real
stake 1n our developments Community consultation will therefore grow
In importance as a means for us to hear the views of local residents,
businesses and pohiticians

CHARITY AND AWARDS

Across the UK, our network of regional offices support a bread range
of local and national chanties and this year we have raised tens of
thousands of pounds towards many worthy causes

Lands End to John 0’Groats sponsored cycle ride

Perhaps the most high profile chanty event was a sponsored cycle
ride from Lands End to John O'Groats The team, comprising
Regional Director Mike Herbert, Semior Development Surveyor Mike
Murray and development surveyors Jonathan Green and Andrew Cox,
completed the task in just ten days and raised, with the help of 5t
Modwen, over £25,000 for the challenge’s four nominated chanties
— The Donna Louise Children's Hospice Trust, Breast Cancer
Campaign, The British Heart Foundation and the James Whale Fund
for Kidney Cancer

St Modwen Environmental Trust

QOur other chanty work includes the St Modwen Environmental Trust
Now 1n its fourth year, the Trust continues to provide valuable support to
community and environmental projects across the UK

Affihiated to the Government's Landfill Tax Credit Scheme and regulated
by ENTRUST, the Environmental Trust seeks to support projects where
alternative funding is unlikely to be available, targeting not-for-profit
organisations such as community groups and chanttes

In 2010 we have commited £200,000 to 15 projects across the UK and
an example of these projects is situated in close proximity to our £100m
Town Centre regeneration project in Wythenshawe, Manchester where we
donated £10,000 to the clean up of Park Wood This is a cause which
was also sponsored by Greening Greater Manchester and Manchester
City Council's Working Neighbourhood Fund Qur grant helped to pay for
the restoration of the pathways which cnss-crossed the wood, signage,
clearing of litter and safety improvernents around the wood’s panels

The proceeds also included regular litter picking events which attracted
around 70 local residents each time and the creation of two carved
woeden sculptures

Councillor Richard Cowell, Executive Member of the Environment at
Manchester City Councii said ‘This project I1s part of the Council’s
regeneration work at Wythenshawe and means that an area of natural
beauty 1s htter-free and has been preserved so that it can be enjoyed
long-term by residents and visitors’
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Awards
Qur track record as the UK's leading regeneration spectalist, centinues to
be recognised by the number of awards we have secured in 2010

The 2010 Chartered Institute of Architectural Technologists”™ National
Awards — Highly Commended

The £30m Vodafone Contact Centre 1n Stoke-on-Trent which St
Modwen's North Staffordshire team completed in early 2010 was
recognised for technical excellence in these national awards

Midlands Insider Awards 2010 — Developer of the Year

Having completed another very active year, the judges felt that this
prestigious title should be awarded to St Modwen's Midlands team
Specifically, pregrass at the £1 billion Longbridge regeneration scheme
and the completion of the £30m Warwickshire College in Rugby were
acknowledged

South West Insider Awards 2010 — Commercial Developer of the Year

St Modwen's South West team was shorthisted for this important award
in recognition of its development actvities across the region, amongst
which includes the £150m Access 18 scheme in Avonmouth, the
£120m regeneration of Skypark in Exeter and the £210m regeneration of
Firepcol in Taunton

27

18014001

This international standard was awarded to The Meads Shopping

Centre in Farnborcugh and demonstrates St Modwen's commitment to
environmental best practice in recycling, energy, waste and water use
The accreditation requires a monthly check on all environmental aspects
of shopping centre operations and states that all suppliers must source
goods ethically

RHS Tatton Park Show 2010 — Silver Award

The ‘Sound Garden” from The Trentham Estate and Gardens was
awarded a silver medal at this year's Tatton Show, orgamised by the

Royal Horticultural Society This interactive, sensory garden, designed by
Clive Mollart, was one of the few show gardens to receive one of the top
awards

The European Garden Hertage Network 2010 — European Award for
Garden Restoration

In recognition of its transformation into cne of the finest gardens in the
British Isles, The Trentham Estate achieved this prestigious award in the
category of 'exceptional achievements n garden culture’ The European
Garden Herntage Network 1s led by The Centre for Garden Art and
Landscape Design in Germany, and 1s supported by a number of local,
regional and national organisations

North West Property Awards 2010 — Inaugural Strategic Alliance Award

The Strategic Alhance Award was established in 2010 to recognise
the importance of partnership working at a time when finance 1s hard
to come by

The judges presented St Modwen and its partner Halton Borough
Council with this award in recogmition of over a decade’s worth of
regeneration to Widnes Town Centre

Organisers of the event referred to the project as a shining example
of the value of partnership working, delivering employment, leisure
and laying foundations for further growth

The award concided with our announcement that in 2011, we
would be commencing the development of Venture Fields, the £10m
leisure scheme on the edge of Widnes and the final piece of the
ngsaw for the Town Centre’s regeneration The scheme s already

over 95% pre-let

In the last ten years, Widnes Regeneration Ltd has completely
transformed and revitalised the Town Centre, leading to substantial
new investment 1n adjoining areas

— 40,000 sq ft of local shopping,

— 80,000 sq ft foodstore,

— 50,000 sq ft retall and leisure development,
— 76 social housing units,

— 150 private homes,

— 150,000 sq ft of employment space,

— The creation of over 900 jobs
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01 ANTHONY GLOSSOP mat
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

A director since 1976 and Chief Executive from 1982 to 2004
Executive Chairman from 2004 to 2008, and non-executive Chairman
since February 2008 He s also a non-executive director of Robinson
PLC , and a member of the Regeneration and Development Commttee
of the British Property Federation

02 BILL SHANNON
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN (designate)

Appointed as a non-executive director and Chairman Designate in
October 2010 and will become Chairman following the company's AGM
in March 2011 He s Chatrrman of AEGON ple and a non-executive
drrector of Johnson Service Group plc and Rank Group plc Previously
he was non-executive director of Barratt Developments plc, Matalan plc
and an executive director of Whitbread plc

03 BILL OLIVER esc, Fca
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Joined the Company as Finance Director in 2000 Appointed Managing
Director in 2003 and Chief Executive in 2004 He has over 30 years'
experience within the housebwlding and property sectors

04 IAN MENZIES-GOW ma-+

A non-executive director appointed in 2002 Sentor Independent
Director since February 2009 Formerly Chairman of Geest PLC and
Derbyshire Building Society and prior to that held senior executive
positions within the Hanson Group

05 DAVID GARMAN BA FoiLT*+

A non-executive director appointed in April 2010 Formerly Chief
Executive of TDG plc and the Allied Bakeries subsidiary of Associated
Bntish Foods plc Currently Senior Independent Director of Canllion plc
and a non-executive director of Phoenix IT Group ple

06 MICHAEL DUNN Bsc, Fca
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR

Joined the Company in December 2010 Michael joined St Modwen
from May Gurney Integrated Services plc, the AIM listed infrastructure
support services business, where he spent five years as Group Finance
Director A chartered accountant, Michael was Finance Director of
Carilhon Building and Canilion Private Finance prior to joining May
Gurney
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07 STEVE BURKE

CONSTRUCTION DIRECTOR

Joined the Company as Construction Director in 1995 and appeinted
to the main Board as a director in November 2006 Previously
contracts director and construction manager with a number of
natignal contracting companies {including Balfour Beatty and

Clarke Construction)

08 SIMON CLARKE -+

A non-executive director appointed in 2004 Chairman of private
company, Dunstall Holdings Ltd Prewiously Deputy Chairman of
Northern Racing PLC and a director and the Vice-Chairman of the
Racecourse Association

09 LADY KATHERINE INNES KER ma, oPhi*t

A non-executive director appointed in October 2009 Formerly a
non-executive director of The Television Corporation PLC, Fibernet
Group plc, Wilhams Lea PLC, Gyrus Group PLC, Shed Media PLC,
Bryant Group plc, Ordnance Survey, ITVDigital plc, Oakley Capital
Limited, Marine Farms ASA and Taylor Wimpey PLC Currently Senior
Independent Director of Tribal Group plc and a non-executive director of
Go-Ahead Group plc
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10 LESLEY JAMES caE, ma, CCIPD <+

A non-executive director appointed in October 2009 Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee Formerly HR Director of Tesco PLC and

a non-executive director of Queens Moat Houses plc, Care UK plc,
Alpha Arrports Group plic, Inspicio plc, Liberty International plc, and
Selfndges ple Currently a non-executive director of Anchor Trust and
the West Bromwich Building Socrety

11 JOHN SALMON Fca-t

A non-executive director appointed in 2005 Chairrman of the Audit
Committee Formerly a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and

a member and former Deputy Chairman of thetr supervisory board
Currently a trustee and council member of the British Heart Foundation

12 REETA STOKES Acis
COMPANY SECRETARY

Jotned the Company in November 2009 Previously a senior manager
in the secretanat of Alhance & Leicester plc, and ran her own practice
prowiding company secretarial services to public and private companies
Prior to that, was Deputy Company Secretary of McKechnie plc

* member of Audit and Remuneration Comrmttees
1 member of the Nomunation Commuttee
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01 JOHN DODDS ssc, FRICS
REGIONAL DIRECTOR — MIDLANDS

02 GUY GUSTERSON Bsc, MBA
RESIDENTIAL DIRECTOR

03 MIKE HERBERT

REGIONAL DIRECTOR — NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE

04 RUPERT JOSELAND gsc, Mrics

05 STEPHEN PROSSER Bsc, Mrics

REGIONAL DIRECTOR — SOQUTH WEST & SOUTH WALES

REGIONAL DIRECTOR — YORKSHIRE & NORTH EAST

06 TIM SEDDON Bsc, MRICS
REGIONAL DIRECTOR — LONDON & SOUTH EAST

07 MICHELLE TAYLOR Bsc, MRics
REGIONAL DIRECTOR — NORTH WEST

08 RUPERT WOOD esc, Mrics
REGIONAL DIRECTOR — NORTHERN HOME COUNTIES
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Corporate Governance Corporate Governance Report

The Board 1s committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance within the Company Throughout the year ended

30th November 2010, the Company has complied with Section 1
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance 1ssued in 2008
({the ‘Code’) except in relation to the following matters

* The Code asks the Board to 1dentify each non-executive duector it
constders to be independent Of the erght nen-executive directors at
the end of 2010, the Board considers Bill Shannon, 1an Menzies-
Gow, David Garman, Lesley James, Katherine Innes Ker, and John
Salmon to be fully independent The Board recognises that Simen
Clarke does not meet the critenia for a fully independent director
under the Code, although his position as a representative of the
Clarke and Leavesley families who together hold 49 1m shares
{24 52%) in the Company's 1ssued share capital, gives him a very
strong interest in challenging and scrutimising management to secure
excellent performance from the Company

s The Code recommends that all members of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees are independent non-executive directors
Each of these Committees compnises all of the non-executive
members of the Board As explained above, Stmon Clarke 1s not a
fully wndependent director under the Code, but the Board considers
that its discussions benefit from his nvolvement 1n the preparatory
detailed scrutiny which takes place in these Commuttees As also
noted above, Simon Clarke has a strong interest in challenging and
monitoring management’s performance

* The Code recommends that a chief executive should not go on to be
the Chairman of the same company As explained in previous years’
annual reports, the Board recommended the appointment of former
Chief Executive, Antheny Glossop, as Chairman of the Board in 2004
which was endorsed by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
that same year As of 11th February 2008 Anthony Glossop became
non-executive Chairman He will be retiring after the Company’s
Annual General Meeting on 22nd March 2011 Bili Shannon, who
was deemed to be independent on appointment, will take over
as Charman The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are
carefully differentiated

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

The Board operates within the terms of its written authonties, which
include a schedule of matters reserved for the approval of the Board
The Board currently consists of the non-executive Chairman, three
executive directors and seven non-executive directors The composition
of the Board provides an appropriate btend of expenience and
qualhfications, and the number of non-executives provides a strong base
for ensuning approprrate corporate governance of the Company The
Board’s decisions are implemented by the executive directors

The Board met 11 times duning the year and the Chairman and the
non-executive directors 2lso met without the executive directors being
present The programme of Board meetings 1s tailored to enable some
meetings to be held at the Company’s properties In advance of each
meeting, each director receives a Beard pack containing comprehensive
briefing papers Presentations on business and operational 1ssues are
made regularly to the Board by senior management The non-executive
directors are encouraged to communicate directly with the executive
directors between formal Board meetings and in addition to these
regular Board meetings, the Board holds an annual strategy meeting at
which it discusses the future direction of the Company as part of the
business planning process

lan Menzies-Gow Is the Senior Independent Director He 1s available for
consultation by shareholders, whenever appropnate He will be retinng
after the Company's Annual General Meeting on 22nd March 2011 Dawid
Garman will be appointed the Senior Independent Director on that date

The Company's Articles of Association provide that all directors are
subject to re-election at |east every three years In addition, all directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders after their imtial appointment

The reappointment of non-executive directors 1s not automatic It s
intended that appointments will be for an imtial term of three years,
which may be extended by mutual agreement Prior to each non-
executive director offering himself to the members for re-election his
reappointment must be confirmed by the Chairman {or the Senior
Independent Director in relation to the Chairman) in consultation with
the remainder of the Board

The Board 15 supplied with timely and relevant information regarding
the business, through regular monthly and ad hoc reports, site visits
and presentations from members of the management team and

by meetings with key partners Where appropriate, the Company
provides the resources to enable directors to update and upgrade their
knowledge Through the Company Secretary, the Board 1s informed of
corporate governance issues and all Board members have access via the
Company Secretary to independent advice if required

The cntena used for evaluating indiwvidual executive directors’
performance are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Individual non-executive directors’ performance 1s reviewed by the
Chairman and Chief Executive The performance of the Board as a |
whole is assessed n the context of the Company's achievement of its .
strategic objectives and total shareholder return targets Feedback on

the Company 1s sought through external surveys from shareholders,

analysts and other professionals within the investment community

following regular briefings, presentations and site visits undertaken by

the Company This feedback 15 made available to the whole Board

In support of the principles of good corporate governance, the Board
has appointed the following Cemmittees, all of which have formal terms
of reference which are available for inspection by shareholders and are
posted on the Company's website, www stmodwen co uk

a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the non-executive
directors The Committee I1s chaired by John Salmon, who as a former
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, i1s considered by the Board te
have the required recent and relevant experience

The Company's Finance Director, Financial Controller and Internal
Auditor attend Audit Committee meetings but the Committee also
meets without management being present and has private sessions
with the auditors The Commuttee has direct access to the internal and
external auditors

The Audit Commurttee’s functions include

s Ensuring that appropriate accounting systems and financial controls
are 1n operation and that the Group's financial statements comply
with statutory and other requirements |

* Recewving reports from, and consulting with, the internal and external
auditers

+ Revtewing the interim and annual results and reports to shareholders,
and considering any matters raised by the internal and external auditors

+ Considening the appropnateness of the accounting policies of the
Group used n preparing its financial statements

* Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and
formal announcements relating to the Group's financial performance,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained
therein
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* Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal avdit function

= Reviewing and monitoning the independence and objectivity of the
Group's external auditors

= Monitonng the scope, cost effectiveness and objectivity of the audit

+ Monitoring the Group’s policy on non-audit services provided by the
external auditors

* Making an annual assessment of the external auditors and
recommending, or not, their reappeintment

« Reviewing “whistle-blowing"arrangements within the Company

Reviewing tts own performance, constitution and terms of reference to
ensure it 15 operating at maximum effectiveness and recommending
any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval

Duning the year, the Commuitee was assisted in the performance of
these duties by the Company’s internal auditor, tasked with auditing the
documented internal control procedures and ensunng compliance

The Commuttee's policy on the prowvision of non-audit services by the
external auditors 1s that, whilst it 1s appropriate and cost effective for the
external auditors to provide tax compliance and tax plannming senices to the
Group, other services should only be provided where alternative providers
do not exist ar where it 1s cost effective or in the Group’s interest for the
external auditors to provide such services In all cases the provision of non-
audit services is carefully monitored by, and subject to the prior approval
of, the Committee The external auditors would not be invited to provide
any non-audit services where it was felt that this could conflict with their
independence or objectivity Such services would include the provision of
internal audit and management consulting services

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE

b) Nomination Committee

The Nomtnation Committee comprises Anthony Glossop (as chatrman
of the Commuttee), lan Menzies-Gow, John Salmon, Lesley James and
Katherine Innes Ker together wath David Garman and Bill Shannon who
joined on 19th April and 1st November 2010 respectively Paul Rigg
resigned on 26th March 2010

The Committee 1s responsible for

» Evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the
Board and the structure, size and composition of the Board and its
Commuittees

o Annually reviewing the performance of non-executve directors and
Board Committees

e Recommending and reviewing new appointments to the Board as they
become due

* Reviewing and approving Board and Committee succession

Duning the year externa} consultants Zygos Partnerships were engaged
to assist 1n a search for two new non-executive directors to replace
the Charrman and Senior Independent Director Following a ngorous
assessment process, the Committee recommended the appointments
of Bill Shannon and Dawid Garman to the Board and they were duly
appointed The Committee also endorsed the appointment during the
year of Michael Dunn as Group Finance Director and he was appointed
on lst December 2010

c) Remuneration Gommittee
The compositien and functions of the Remuneration Commuittee are set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 38

The attendance at Board or Committee meetings during the year to 30th November 2010, was as follows

Audit Remuneration  Nominations

Board Committee Committee Committee
CCA Glossop 11 — 4* 2
S J Burke 10 — — —_
TP Haywood {resigned 26 11 10} 11 3 — —
WA Oliver 11 — 4* 1*
S W Clarke 11 3 4 2
L. James 10 3 4 2
K Innes Ker 10 3 4 2
R | Menzies-Gow 11 3 4 2
D P Rigg (resigned 26 3 10) 4 1 1 1
JH Salmon 10 3 4 2
D Garman (appointed 19 4 10) 7 2 2 1
WM FC Shannon (appointed 1 11 10) 1 1 — —
No of meetings duning the year 11 3 4 2

* In attendance, but not a member of the commitee
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BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

The Code recommends that the Board undertake a formal and nigorous
annual evaluation of its own performance A formal evaluation,
facilitated by an external assessor, Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review,
was undertaken dunirg 2008-09 The principal findings of the review
were that although there had been a significant improvement in rnisk
management, communication with shareholders and stakeholders

and a shared sense of visien, areas that required further review were
succession planning and clanty of Board agenda and papers

During 2009-10 a number of changes were made to the composition
of the Board, including the appointment of Chairman Designate and
Sentor Independent Director Designate and the Group Finance Director
was replaced on 1st December 2010

Evaluations of the Board process continue to be camed out by the
Chairrman Designate and Company Secretary and it 1s intended that the
next Board evaluation which i1s due later in 2011, will be undertaken
externally

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises that 1t has overall responsibihty for the
identification and mitigation of nsks and the development and
maintenance of an appropriate system of internal control

During the penod under review the directors have reviewed

* the effectiveness of the system of internal control 1n accordance with
the Turnbull guidance, through the production of a detarled report
which covered the Group's control environment,

« the manner In which key business risks are identified,
* the adequacy of information systems and control procedures, and

+ the manner in which any required corrective action 1s to be taken

3

The Group's key internal controls are centred on comprehensive monthly
reporting from all activities which includes a detailed portfolio analysrs,
development progress reviews, management accounts and a comparison
of committed expenditure against available facilities These matters are
reported to the Board monthly, with reasons for any sigmificant vanances
from budget Detalled annual budgets are reviewed by the Board and
revised forecasts for the year are prepared on a regular basis

The Group has put in place its own internal audit function Internal
audit work 15 focused on the controls that mitigate the principal rnsks
faced by the Group The internal audit reports are prepared for the
executive management and the findings are reported to the Group’s
Audit Committee

There are clearly defined procedures for the authonsation of capital
expenditure, purchases and sales of development and investment
properties, contracts and commitments and a formal schedule of
matters, including major investment and development decisions and
strategic matters, that are reserved for Board approval Formal policies
and procedures are in place covering all elements of employment, the
construction process, health and safety and IT

Internal control, by its nature, provides only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The directors continue,
however, to strive to ensure that internal control and nsk management
are further embedded nto the operations of the business by dealing with
areas for improvement as they are identified In the year under review, no
material loss was suffered by a failure of internal control

The analysis of the business's key risks was also reviewed and redefined
in the hight of current experience

The Company's policies with respect to its

a) financial nsk management objectives and policies, including the
policy for hedging each major type of forecasted transaction for which
hedge accounting 1s used, and

b)exposure to price risk, credit nsk, liquidity risk and cashflow risk,
are contained in Note 16 to the accounts
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Risks and Uncertainties

St Modwen recognises that the identification, assessment, monitoring and response to business nisks 15 essenbal to the delivery of the Group's
objectives St Modwen has policies and procedures in place that are designed to enable the business to manage and mitigate its corporate,
operational and financial risks This is reinforced by a management structure that seeks to reduce nisks n the business

Risk Area

Descriptien of Risk

Risk Mitigation

Assessment

Economic and Property

Financial

Business Organisation
and People

Failure to Secure
Appropriate Schemes

Lack of demand for space from
occupiers or land from housebuilders
restricts business development

Declining rental yields reduce
profitability and cash flow

Reduced availabihity of well funded
property purchasers reduces profits
and restricts cash flow

Market investment yield movements
reduce profitability and affect
property portfalic valuations

Funding constraints restrict growth
and development of the business

Unforeseen significant changes to
cash flow requirements limit the
ability of the business to meet its
ongomng commitments

Interest rate changes cause
unforeseen financial less

Shortage of skilled and expenenced
people

Poor succession planning

IT fallure prevents business
operation

Poor market intelligence on
schemes or competitors prevents
successful bids or causes the
selection of inappropriate
schemes

Lack of availability of finance
himits potential scheme
development

Inaccurate reputation with
clients reduces ability to secure
schemes

Regtonal spread and portfolio
diversity mitigates sector or location
specific nsks

Active portfolio management
achieves a better than market
utihsation of assets

Professionally conducted and
conservative property valuations

Recurring income from rental
provides funding for ongoing
overhead and interest costs

Regular and detailed cash flow
forecasting enables momitoring of
performance and management of
future cash flows Headroom is
maintained in high quality banking
facilities

Performance against budget is
assessed monthly

Hedging policy contains interest
rate nisk

Targeted recruitment with
compehtive, performance drven
remuneration packages

Succession planning reviewed at
Board level

Dedicated IT team monitor
performance of all information
systems

Regional offices in touch with
their local market

Dedicated central resource to
support regignal teams

Flexible and innovative approach
to acquisitions and schemes

in order to adapt as market
conditions change

Financial headroom maintained to
provide flexibility

Projects, acquisitions and
disposals are reviewed {and
financially appraised) within
clearly defined authonty imits

Business wide PR programme in
place

We have chosen to operate only

In one geographical area, the UK,
which 1s subject to relatively low-
nsk, low-returns from a stable and
mature, albeit cyclical economy and
property market By involvement
with all sectors of that economy
and that property market, we are

as diversified as possible, without
venturing overseas

Our cautious approach to forward
commitments, speculative
development and asset disposals
has enabled us to optimise
operational cash flows, and to
offset the impact of fluctuating
market conditions Furthermore,
we have once again recorded

a trading profit in the year,
demonstrating our ability to
succeed 1n varying markets

Our banking facilities have been
extended, our gearing reduced and
interest rate risk hedged

Vacancies are few, and are
generally filled promptly, indicating
the attractiveness of the Company
and remuneration packages To
support the long-term financial
objectives, we will need to continue
to improve the skiils of our
employees

With improving economic
conditions, pension contrnibutions,
payment of bonuses and modest
salary Increases have been
reintroduced

The excellent reputation and
restored financial capacity of
the Company have enabled us to
win a number of schemes and
to grow the hopper to recard
levels, even in the current
financially-constrained chimate
We anticipate that the number
of apportuntties will increase

as vendor expectations become
more realistic and lenders begin
to address the i1ssues in their
loan books In this environment,
with a reduced number of active
competitors, we expect to be able
to continue to source attractive
acquisitions
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Risk Area

Description of Risk

Risk Mthigation
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Assessment

Construction

Reputational

Regulatory

Social, Ethical and
Environm ental

Financial or reputational damage
from inappropriate quality or
timeliness

Inaccurate imitial project
assessments of contamination,
development cost or contractor
status prevent effective delivery
causing financial loss

Lack of trusted contractor and
sub-contractor resources available
for increased post-recession
activity

Difficulty 1n securnng appropriate
partnerships and schemes If
reputation with influential third
parties negatively affected

Investor perception damaged

Recruitment and retention of key
staff impacted

Planning regime changes
lirit ability to secure viable
pEermissions

Lack of comphance with complex
tax regutations causes financial
loss

Senous injury or death of an
employee, a chient or a member of
the public

Environmental poliution leading
to financial penalties or loss of
reputation

Inappropnate ethical or business
behaviour causing legal nsks or
loss of reputation

Strong internal construction
management team

Use and close supervision of
a preferred supply chain of
high quality trusted suppliers
and professionals, including
assessment of their financial
viabihity

Clearly defined formal tender
process that evaluates qualitative
and quantitative factors in bid
assessment

Proven experience of completing
schemes successfully despite
contractor failure

Monthly review of performance
to identify if senior management
intervention 15 required

Regular feedback obtained from
chents, advisers and investors

Use of high quality professicnal
advisers

Compliance training programmes
n place

Programme of regular high level
meetings with influential public
bodtes

Performance indicators are
reviewed monthly

Defined business processes
and authority levels to manage
transactions

Any 1ssues dealt with openly and
promptly

The Company s willing to accept
a degree of environmental/
contamination nsk, enabling
higher returns to be made for the
perceived higher risks undertaken
These nsks are passed on or
mimimised where possible, but
cannot be eliminated In our
recent experience, the residual
risks have been acceptably low

In current markets there 1s an
increased risk of contractor
faillure Qur panel of contractors
15 assessed for stabihty and
suitability but 1s not immune

to wider economic rnisks Using

a sufficiently broad mx of
contractors, for whom our work 1s
important, mitigates the impact of
a single failure

The Company enjoys an excellent
reputation with its stakeholders
(including investors, business
partners and employees) This
15 based on, and reinforced by,
a strong set of principles and
consistent delivery of promises
The very nature of our business,
however, means that there will
always be an element of local
controversy, thus exposing us to
reputational damage

Our daily exposure to all aspects
of the planning process, and
internal procedures for spreading
best practice ensure we remain
abreast of most developments

We have become more active

in attempting to influence

public policy debate, although
meaningful and beneficial changes
are very difficult to bring about,
notwithstanding the formalities of
extensive public consultation

We continue to remain vigilant on
health and safety 1ssues The initial
assessment of environmental costs
(and the subsequent optimising

of remediation scluticns) is an
integral part of our acquisition

and post-acquisition procedures
We seek to minimise or pass on
any such environmental risks,

and believe that the residual risk
in this respect 15 acceptably low

In other social and ethical areas,
the Company has benefited from
the underpinming of a stmple

but rigorous set of operating
commitments
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PRINGIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of a group of property
investment and development companies A list of the subsidiary and
assoclated undertakings affecting the prefit or net assets of the Group
are included in Note F to the Company Financial Statements

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company 1s required by the Companies Act 2006 to include a
business review in this report This tnformation can be found on pages
08 to 19, which is incorporated 1n this report by reference

DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend a final divdend of 2p per ordinary share to be
paid on 4th Apnl 2011 to ordinary shareholders on the register on 11th
March 2011 which, together with the interim dividend of 1p paid on
6th September 2010, makes a total of 3p for the year (2009 nit)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ORDINARY SHARES
The interests of the directers in the 1ssued share capital of the
Company, are shown below

30th November 30th November

2010 2009
Beneficial
S J Burke 174,643 112,123
S W Clarke 6,112,657 7,122,657
C C A Glossop 1,708,792 1,767,292
TP Haywood {resigned on 26 11 10} — 155,324
L James 10,000 10,000
R ! Menzies-Gow 14,814 14,814
WA OCliver 391,093 314,157
D P Rigg (retired on 26 3 10) — 2,812
J H Salmon 25,000 18,000
D Garman {(appointed 19 4 10) 10,000 —
WMFC Shannon (appointed on 1 11 10) 40,000 —
Non-beneficial
CCA Glossop 180,000 180,000

Mr M E Dunn who was appointed as Group Finance Director on
1st December 2010, held 30,000 shares on 30th November 2010

The above Interests do not include shares held under the share option
schemes descnbed n the Directors” Remuneration Report on pages
39to 41

There has been no change in these beneficial interests between
30th November 2010 and the date of this report

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS
As at 4th Februvary 2011 the Company had been notified of the
following interests in more than 3% of 1ts 1ssued share capital

Number of Percentage of

Ordinary Ordinary
Shareholder Shares Held  Share Capital
J D Leavesley and connected parties 18,543,382 9 25%
Lady Clarke and farmly holdings
(excluding § W Clarke) 24,462,539 12 21%
Aberforth Partners 14,429,368 7 20%
Co-operative Asset Management 8,640,359 4 81%
Morgan Stanley Investment Management 9,533,648 476%
Kempen Capital Management 9,515,186 4 75%
BlackRock 7,520,923 375%
CBRE Global Rea! Estate Securities 7,269,244 363%
AXA Investment Managers 7,182,457 3 58%
Legal & General Investment Management 6,488,153 3 24%

REAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The directors listed on pages 28 to 29 constituted the Board during
the year David Garman and Bill Shannon, having been appointed since
the last Annual General Meeting {'AGM"), offer themselves for elechion
Anthony Glossop and lan Menzies-Gow will retire from the Board

and are not seeking re-election Michael Dunn, who was appointed
Dhrector on 1st December 2010, will also offer himself for election In
accordance with a new provision included in the Governance Code, all
other directors will seek re-election at the next Annual General Meeting
Although this proviston of the Governance Code would not apply to the
Company untit the financial year ending 30th November 2011, the
Board has decided to comply this year

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract existed during the year in relation to the Company's
business in which any director was materially interested, with the
exception of those detailed in Note 21

QUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As at the date of this report, there are qualifying third parly indemmity
provisions governed by the Companies Act 2006 In place, under which
the Company has agreed to indemnify the directors, former directors
and the Company Secretary of the Company, directors and former
directors of any member of the Group or of an associated company or
affiliate company and members of the Executive Committee, to the
extent permitted by law and the Articles against all hability arising in
respect of any act or omission in thewr duties  In addition the Company
has in place Directors’ and Officers' liability insurance for each officer
of the Cempany and 1ts associated companies

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLIGY

It 1s the Group's policy to agree specific payment terms for its business
transactions with its suppliers and to abide by those terms whenever

it 1s satisfied that the suppher has provided the goods and services in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions

During the year ended 30th November 2010 trade creditors represented
an average of 32 days’ purchases (2009 31 days) This has been
calculated by expressing year end creditors as a fraction of purchases
made 1n the year, and multiplying the resulting fraction by 365 days

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Details of the Group's Key Performance Indicators can be found on page
18

GOING CONGERN

In consideration of the basis of going concern, the directors have
considered the factars described in the Business Review and reviewed
the Group's future cash forecasts and valuation projections, which the
directors believe are based on realistic assumptions

On these grounds the Board has continued to adopt the going concern
basis for the preparation of the financial statements

EMPLOYEES

The Group encourages employee involvement and places emphasis

on keeping its employees informed of the Group's activities and
performance The Company’s executive runs quarterly management
meetings at which staff are informed about information affecting them
as employees, where their feedback 1s sought on decisions hkely to
affect their interests, and where a common awareness 15 achieved of the
financial and economic factors affecting the Company's performance
This information s then cascaded to staff at the Company’s head office
and regional offices A performance related annual bonus scheme

and share option arrangements are designed to encourage employee
invelvement 1n the success of the Group
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The Group operates a non-discrimenatory employment policy under
which full and fair consideration 1s given to disabled applicants, to

the continued employment of staff who become disabled, and to

their continued career development and promotion It 1s the policy

of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of
disabled persons should, as far as possible, be 1dentical to that of other
employees

The Group operates a pension scheme which 1s open to all employees
— see Note 18 of the financ:al statements

POLITICAL DONATIONS AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Company did not make any political donations in the year Details
of the Company's chanitable activities are included in the CSR review
Direct chantable donations during the year, excluding donations made
by the St Modwen Environmental Trust, totalled £12,000

(2009 £14,000)

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The executive directors have a programme of meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts at which the Company’s strategy and

most recently reported performance are explained and guestions

and comments made are relayed to the whole Board Visits are also
arranged to sites of particular interest or significance to assist investors'
understanding of the Company's business The Company's Annual
General Meeting 15 also used as an opportunity te communicate with
private investors In addition to the usual penod for guestions which is
made available for shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, John
Salmon, the Chairman of the Audit Commuttee, and Lesley James, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, will be available to answer
appropriate questions Any matters of concern regarding the Company
are discussed by the Senior Independent Director with shareholders or
appropriate corporate governance bodies and comments are fed back by
bim to the whole Board

Copies of all press releases, investor presentations and Annual Reports
are posted on the Company’s website (www stmodwen co uk), together
with additional details of major projects, key financial information and
company background The number of proxy votes cast in resolutions

1s announced at the Annual General Meeting and published on the
Company's website

To simplify and encourage participation in voting on resclutions at our
Annual General Meeting, the Company provides the opportunity to vote
electromically through CREST (for further details see pages 92 and

93) In addition, shareholders will also be able to appoint a proxy
electronically via the Company Share Registrar’s website, www
shareview co uk
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ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

Each year the Company produces and posts annual reports to all of its
shareholders, at considerable cost to the Company and the environment
In an effort to reduce the cost and the environmental burden and
provide instant access, the Board has agreed to make more use

of electronic and website communication All shareholder
documentation will continue to be published directly on our website
{(www stmodwen co uk)} Shareholders will be notified by email or post
each time a document 1s published on the website and how to find it
The intenm management statements will continue to be available via
the website

Shareholders who prefer to receive a printed copy will be able to elect
to do so (those who have elected to receive a pninted copy already will
continue to do so) Shareholders who have elected to receive electronic
communications can at any time change their elechion and require the
Company to send them a paper copy of any document or information
which has been posted on the Company website

Although electronic communications will become the default option,
the Company reserves the right te send printed documents by post,
should the information be more suited to that format If the Company
Is required to restrict the sending of any documents or information to
any shareholder due to the local laws of the junsdiction in which the
shareholder 15 resident or located and as a result, the Company is not
permitted to use electronic means to communicate with shareholders, it
will send hard copies of the documents or infoermation

BUSINESS STANDARDS

The Company does not condone any form of corrupt behaviour in
business dealings and has disciphnary procedures in place to deal with
any 1llegal or inappropnate activittes by employees
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This remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S | 2008/410) (the
‘Regulations’), the Listing and Disclosure Rules and the principles
relating to directors’ remuneration of the UK Corporate Governance
Code and will be subject to an advisory vote at the AGM

The information, the headings of which have been noted with an
asterisk (*), are subject to audit in accordance with the Regulations

COMPOSITION AND FUNCTION OF THE REMUNERATION GOMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’) compnses Lesley
James (Chairman), Simon Clarke, lan Menzies-Gow, Katherine [nnes
Ker, John Salmon, Dawid Garman and Bil Shannon David Garman and
Bill Shannon joined 1n April and November 2010 respectively Paul
Rigg was a member until his resignation in March 2010

The Committee is respensible for all aspects of the executive directors’
remuneration and administers the Company's share schemes This
includes an annual review of the incentive plan to ensure that it
remains appropriate to the Company’s current circumstances and
prospects and that, in particular, the policy adopted is aligned with and
based on the creation of value for shareholders and provides appropriate
incentives for management to achieve this objective

The remuneration of the non-executive directors 1s considered by

the Board following recommendations by the executive directors No
directors participate 1n setting their own remuneration The Commuttee
also reviews and notes annually the remuneration trends across the
Company and any major changes in employee benefit structures The
Commuittee’s terms of reference are available for inspection on the
Company's website at www stmodwen co vk

During the year, Hewitt New Bridge Street (‘"HNBS') replaced Towers
Watson as the Committee's independent remuneration advisers HNBS
do no other work for the Company The Committee was also assisted

in its deliberations by the Chairman, the Chief Executive and the
Company Secretary, who were not present when their own remuneration
arrangements were under discussion

REMUNERATION POLICY

The objective of St Modwen's remuneration policy 1s to attract, retain
and motivate high calibre semor executives through competitive pay
arrangements which are also in the best interests of shareholders These
include performance-related elements with demanding targets, tn order
to align the interests of directors and shareholders and to appropnately
reward financial success

The overall aim is that executive directors’ remuneration should be
market competitive relative to comparable companies with a sigmificant
element being performance-related and, therefore, only payable If
stretching short-term and long-term performance targets are achieved

The main elements of executive directors’ remuneration comprise

¢ Base salary reviewed annually in the hight of information on the
external market and other relevant factors such as internal relativities
and indmdual performance

Aanual honus a clear and direct incentive hinked to annual
performance targets Bonus targets require performance based
on financial, operational and strategic measures at company and
personal levels

= Performance share plan an annual award of shares which vest, subject
to achtevement of performance targets, in whole or in part after three
years The plan was agreed by shareholders in 2007 and provides the
main incentive to sustained, longer term performance The plan rules
require challenging performance targets to be set for each award to
vest

+ Pensions and benefits: executive directors’ on-going pension benefits
comprise a cash allowance or a Company contnbution to
the defined contribution scheme Executive directors also receive
private medical insurance, life insurance and participate in the
company car plan

+ Shareholdings: it has been the Company’s policy since 1st December
2006 that executive directors are expected to build up thewr
shareholdings 1n the Company over a five year period to be shares,
at a minimum, worth one times base salary

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Committee, with the assistance of its independent advisers,
undertook 1ts annual review of executive directors' remuneratton This
review assessed existing pay arrangements in light of the Committee's
policy objectives, operational and strategic priorities, corporate
governance best practice, relevant market developments and pay
practice throughout the Company Following this review, the Committee
has agreed the following changes for 2010-11

Executive directors’ base salarnies have been increased by 2% from
Ist December 2010 This 1s consistent with the average 2% increase
awarded to other staff

Pension provision for all employees was reduced in 2009-10 (the
reduction for executive directors was from 15% to 5% of salary)
Following the resumption of NAV growth, pension provision has been
restored in 2010-11 for all employees to their previous level

A claw-back facility has been introduced to the annual bonus plan for
2010-11 to reflect current best practice

In recent years, awards granted under the performance share plan
have been subject to a mixture of total shareholder return (‘'TSR’) and
NAV performance measures To avoid potential overlap with the annual
bonus plan, the Committee has decided that performance share plan
awards 1n 2010-11 will be measured against absolute and refative
TSR performance

Full details of these changes are set out below

Base salaries

No increases to base salaries were given for the year beginning

1st December 2009, in line with the policy adopted for the majority
of employees

Base salanes for the year beginning 1st December 2010 were reviewed
having regard to market conditions and the salary review being
implemented for other staff which was as a 2% increase Salaries were
set at the following levels Bill Oliver (Chief Executive) — £432,847
(2% wncrease), Stephen Burke (Construction Director) — £285,600
(2% increase) Michael Dunn (the new Group Finance Director) was
appointed on 1st December 2010 with a salary of £260,000

Pension

Employer contributions to the defined contnbution scheme
were reduced for all employees from 1st September 2009 until
30th November 2010 For executive directors, this resulted 1n a
reduction from 15% of salary to 5% of salary

The Board has approved the reinstatement of pension contributions
across the Company with effect from December 2010 at the same rates
applicable prior to their suspension in September 2009 Executive
directors will, therefore, receve contnbutions of 15% of salary 1n
2010-11 either as a cash supplement or as a contribution to the
defined contrnibution scheme
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Annval Bonus Plan

2009-10

In 2009-10, the executive directors had the opporturity to earn a
bonus of up to 125% of base salary, with performance measured
against a range of cntena including NAV growth at the year end,
covenant comphiance, gearing levels, land and property acquisitions
and disposals, marshaliing activity and personal targets including cost
management

Payment of bonus was not dependent on achievement of any single
target 1n 1solation, since the targets were all of key tmportance to the
short and longer-term health of the Company and the Committee did not
wish to distort behaviour by focusing on a single element

The executve directors’ performance was assessed individually by the
Committee against the targets, relying on audited information where
appropnate, and having regard to the value which has been created for
shareholders

On the basis of the Committee's assessment of corporate and indmidual
performance, bonus payments made to each of the executive directors
were Bill Oliver 80% of maximum bonus (100% of salary), Steve Burke
80% of maximum bonus (100% of salary) Tim Haywood resigned on
26th November 2010 and did not receive any bonus

Payment of the bonus 1s conditional upon the executive directors
undertaking to invest at least one third of the bonus received, after
payment of income tax and national insurance, in Company shares and
to retain those shares for a mimimum period of three years

2010-11

Following its review of remuneration arrangements, the Remuneration
Committee has broadly matntained the structure of the existing bonus
plan for 2010-11

* A mixture of corporate measures and personzl targets will continue
to determine bonus payments

* The corporate measures selected will be consistent with and
complement the budget and strategic plan for the year NAV
performance will have the targest weighting amongst the corporate
measures in 2010-11 Other measures will include dividend growth,
gearing levels, marshalling activity and return on capital

s Notwithstanding performance against individual measures, the
Commuttee will retain an overnding discretion to ensure that overall
bonus payouts reflect its view of corporate performance during
the year

¢ The maximum bonus potential will remain at 125% of salary with
executive directors bemng required to invest at least one third of any
bonus received in Company shares

s A new feature for the bonus plan 1n 201C-11 Is that all bonuses
paid will be subject to potential claw-back at the Committee's
discretion for a period of four years following the end of the bonus
year in the event that a later restatement of accounts occurs or there
15 other discovered misconduct which, If known at the time, would
have meant that a lower or ni! bonus would have been paid

Perfarmance Share Plan (“PSP")

Prior year awards

Awards granted to executive directors in 2008 over shares worth 150%
of salary were subject to a NAV growth target and a TSR multipher As
the minimum NAV growth target has not been met, the Remuneration
Committee has determined that these awards will lapse

K

Awards granted to executive directors in 2009 and 2010 over shares
worth 125% of salary, half were subject to a NAV condition and half to
a TSR cendition both measured aver a peniod of three financial years

* NAV condition — based on curmulative growth 1n NAV per share
(“NAV growth™) NAV growth of 5% (2009 award)/7 5% (2010
award) will earn 12 5% of the shares awarded and growth of 20%
(2009 award/30% (2010 award} will earn 50% of the shares
awarded

« TSR condition — based on TSR relative to the FTSE350 Real Estate
Index TSR equal to the Index over the three year performance
penod will earn 12 5% of the shares awarded and TSR of 120% of
the Index will earn 50% of the shares awarded, with a straight-line
correlation between these points

Tim Haywood resigned as Finance Director on 26th November 2010
and his share options have lapsed

2010-11 awards

In 2010-11, PSP awards to Bill Oliver and Steve Burke will be over
shares worth 125% of salary To reflect hus recent recruitment, the
Remuneration Commitiee has agreed a shghtly larger award over shares
worth 150% of salary to Michael Dunn

Noting the concern of some nvestors and the potential overlap with the
annual bonus plan, PSP awards in 2010-11 will not be subjectto a
NAV related performance measure Instead they will be subject wholly
to TSR related measures measured over three financal years — half
based on relative performance as in previous years and half based on
absolute growth The Committee believes that this combination provides
alignment with the interests of sharehglders and complements the focus
on operational performance measures in the annual borus plan

s Absolute TSR performance TSR growth of 20% will earn 12 5% of
the shares awarded and growth of 50% will earn 50% of the shares
awarded

* Relative TSR performance TSR equal to the FTSE 350 Real Estate
Investment & Services Index over the three year performance penod
will earn 12 5% of the shares awarded and TSR of 120% of the
Index will earn 50% of the shares awarded

In calcutating TSR, a three month average wiil be used at beth ends of
the performance period to ensure that the calculation i1s nat impacted
by potential volatility ansing from day-to-day share price fluctuations

Notwithstanding TSR performance the Committee also has to be
satisfied that two new underpin conditions have been met before
permitting 2010-11 PSP awards to vest, namely

* The Commritee needs to be satisfied that the extent of vesting
under the TSR conditions 1s appropriate given the general financial
perfermance of the Company cver the performance peried, and

= If no dividend has been paid on the last normal dividend date prior
to the vesting date or if the Committee believes that no dividend wtll
be paid in respect of the year 1n which the award vests, the award
will not vest at that time and vesting will be delayed (subject to
continued employment) until dradend payments are resumed

The Committee will review these performance conditions when deciding
PSP grants n future years, in order to reflect changes in the outlook
for the sector and the Company, and to ensure that awards remain
chatlenging

Executve directors may also participate rn the Company's savings-
related share schemes on the same terms as all other employees
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The Company’s total shareholder return 1s shown in the graph below agatnst a broad equity market index Since the Company was a constituent of the
FTSE 250 and FTSE Real Estate indices during the year, these are considered to be appropnate benchmarks for the graph

— FTSE 350RE
Audited information®
EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES"™
Exercise Exercise
Date of Grant WA Oliver S J Burke TP Haywood Price Period
August 2004* 105,610 46,315 — 236p Aug 2007
-Aug 2014
August 2005* 102,955 39,825 46,610 375p Aug 2008
—Aug 2015

As at 30th November 2010 208,565 86,140 — ()

{1} All share options have vested in full having met the performance conditions

{nTP Haywood resigned on 26th November 2010 and as a result his share options have lapsed

* The exercise prices and numbers of shares under optian have been ad)usted to reflect the equity 1ssue in June 2009
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PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN
Directors’ maximum entitiements, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions, are as follows
Exercise
Date of Grant WA Oliver S J Burke TP Haywood Period
12th February 2008*(} 152,305 85,025 89,091 Feb 2011
-Feb 2018
24th July 2009 294,694 194 444 172,381 July 2012
—July 2019
22nd February 2010 282,154 186,170 165,046 Feb 2013
—Feb 2020
Total 729,153 465,639 —= (1)
*  The numbers of shares have been adjusted to reflect the equity 1ssue in June 2009
{1} PSP awards granted in 2008 have lapsed performance conditions not having been met
{uy TP Haywood resigned on 26th November 2010 and as a result his entitlement under the Performance Share Plan has lapsed
The share pnce on 22nd February 2010, the date of the latest grant, was 188p
SAVINGS RELATED SCHEMES
Balance at Balance at Exercise Exercise
30th Nov 2009* Exercised Granted 30th Nov 2009 Price* Period
C CA Glossop 876 —_ — 876 367p Mar 2012
WA Oliver 6,941 — — 6,941 224p Oct 2014
-Mar 2015
TP Haywood 7,025 —_ — 7,025 224p-228p Mar 2013
-Mar 2014
S J Burke 6,941 — — 6,941 224p Oct 2014
—~Mar 2015

* The exercise pnces and numbers of shares under opticn have been adjusted to reflect the equity 1ssue in the year

** TP Haywood resigned on 26th November 2010 and as a result his option to purchase shares has lapsed

The share price as at 30th November 2010 was 135 4p The highest price during the year was 218 7p and the lowest price was 135 4p
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SERVICE CONTRACTS
All of the executive directors have service contracts of no fixed term, with notice periods of 12 months

The non-executive directors have Letters of Appointment with notice penods of three months

No director has any rights to compensation on loss of office (apart from payment in heu of notice, where appropriate)
Unless specifically approved by the Board, executive directors are not permitted to hold external non-executive directorships
The dates of the executive directors’ service contracts are as follows

WA Olier 24th January 2000
S J Burke 1st January 2006

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30th November 2010 was as follows

Total emoluments
excluding pensions

and penston
Annual contributions
Salaryffees bonus Benefits 2010 2009
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Executive
S J Burke 280 280 25 585 510
TP Haywood (to 26 11 10) 248 — 21 269 419
WA Chver 424 424 33 881 823
Non-Executive
CCA Glossop 125 — 13 138 144
S W Clarke 37 — — 37 37
M E Francis {to 30 9 09) — — — — 38
R 1 Menzies-Gow 43 — — 43 41
DP Rigg(to 26 3 10) 12 — — 12 37
C E Roshier (to 3 4 09) — — — —_ 15
JH Salmon 46 — — 46 46
L James 46 —_ — 46 6
K Innes Ker 37 — — 37 5
D Garman (from 19 4 10) 23 —_ — 23 —
WM FC Shannon {from 1 11 10) 11 — — 1" e
1,332 704 92 2,128 2,121

All benefits for the execubive directors {compnsing mainly the provision of company car, fuel and health insurance) anse from employment with the
Company, and do not farm part of directors’ final pensionable pay

The figures above represent emoluments earned during the relevant financial year Such emeluments are pad in the same financial year with the
exception of performance related bonuses, which are paid in the year following that in which they are earned

Tim Haywood, who was appointed a Director in 2003, resigned on 26th November 2010 According to the terms of his contract of employment, he
was obliged to give the Company twelve months’ notice, but by mutual consent, he received a payment of £248,230 which comprised one year's
basic salary There were no other payments 1n relation to the loss of his benefits and his entitlements under the Executive Share Options Scheme and
Performance Share Plan and the option to purchase the shares under the SAYE ShareSave Scheme have also lapsed The amount paid has not been
included in the table above
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PENSIONS

The Company operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnbution secticns, covering the majonity of employees, including
executive directors In relation to the defined benefit section, benefits are based on years of credited service and final pensionable pay The maximum
pension generally payable under the scheme is two-thirds of final pensionable pay The defined benefit section of the scheme was closed to new
members i 1999, and to future accrual in 2009

Membership of the defined contribution section 1s available to all permanent employees including executive directors joining the Company after
6th April 1999 Contnibutions are invested by an independent investment manager

S J Burke became a defetred member of the Defined Benefit Section on 1st September 2009

Contributions made on behalf of the directors amounted to

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
WA Oliver 2 53
S 1 Burke 14 3
TP Haywood 12 31

With effect from 1st September 2009, Company contributions into the defined contribution section of the plan were reduced The Company
contnbutions resumed at the full rate on 1st December 2010

Further information on the Company's pension scheme 1s shown 1n Note 18 of the financial statements

Approved by the Board and signed on its behaif by

L
lzg: an, Remuneration Committee
(i February 2011
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Financial Statements

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations
Company law reguires the directors te prepare financial statements for each financral year Under that law the directors are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4
of the |AS Regulation and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
pencd

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to
» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

» Prepare the financial statements on the gorng concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue n business
In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

* Properly select and apply accounting policies,

» Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

¢ Provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact
of particular transacttons, other events and condittons on the entity’s financial position and financial performance, and

* Make an assessment of the Company’s atuhity to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactiens and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financia! position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemunation of financial statements may differ from legistation 1n other
Jurisdictions

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that
* So far as the director 1S aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditers are unaware, and

« The director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

This confrmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and a resoiution ta reappoint them will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting

Responsihility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

« The financial statements, prepared in accordance wath the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the conschdation taken as a whole, and

= the management report, which s incorporated into the directors' report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the positron of the Company and the undertakings (ncluded in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

Bill Qlrver Michael Bunn
Chief Executive Group Finance Directa
4th February 2011 -
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Independent Group Auditors’ Report
to the Members of St Modwen Properties PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of St Modwen Properties PLC for the year ended 30th November 2010 which comprise the Group
Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement
of Changes in Equity and the related Notes 1 to 21 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report

and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s te audit and express an opinion on the Group financial
statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and treland} Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financral statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinian on financial statements
In our apinion the Group financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 30th November 2010 and of its profit for the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

Separate opinion 19 relatien to IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB
As explained 1n Note 1 to the Group financial statements, the Group tn addition to complying with its legal abltgation to apply IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as i1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

Opimon on other matter prescnbed by the Gompantes Act 2006
In our opinion the information given n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the foilowing

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

= the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not tn agreement with the accounting records
and returns,

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ statement, contained within the Corporate Governance Statement, In relation to going cencern, and

¢ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with the nine prowisions of the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review

Qther matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of St Modwen Properties PLC for the year ended 30th November 2010 and

the informatmgn in the Byrectors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as being audited
3 WY

Stephen & FCA (Semor Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of Delortte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, United Kingdom
4th February 2011
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Group Income Statement
for the year ended 30th November 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Revenue 1 1214 1137
Net rental Income 1 264 261
Development profit/({loss) 1 125 (9 3)
Gains on dispesal of investments/investment properties 25 22
Investment property revaluation gains/(losses) 8 232 8l17)
Other net income 1 31 18
Profits/(losses) of Jjoint ventures and associates (post-tax} 10 74 {22 9)
Administrative expenses 3 (16 8) (13 9)
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 583 {97 7)
Finance cost 4 (240) (26 0)
Finance income 4 32 43
Profit/(loss) hefore tax 37s (119 4)
Tax credit 5 08 177
Profit/(loss) tor the year 383 (101 7)
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company 372 (101 1)
Non-controlling interests 1 (0 6)
383 (1017
2010 2009
Notes pence pence
Basic and diluted profit/(loss) per share 6 186 (59 7)
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Group Balance Sheet

as at 30th November 2010
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 8 8280 762 9
Operating property, plant and equipment 9 T4 79
Investments 1n joint ventures and associates 10 49 4 413
Trade and other recevables 11 82 52
8930 817 3
Current assets
Inventories 12 1716 1827
Trade and other receivables 11 453 47 0
Cash and cash equivalents 113 48
2282 2445
Current Nabilities
Trade and other payables 13 (133 1) {139 2)
Borrowings 14 —_ 04)
Tax payables 5 (93) (77
{142.4) {147 3)
Non-current lizbilities
Trade and other payables 13 (215 1) (188 9)
Borrowings 14 {326 2) {323 2)
Deferred tax 5 on (14
(542 0) (513 5)
Net assets 4368 4010
Capital and reserves
Share capital 17 200 200
Share premium account 1028 1028
Capital redemption reserve 03 03
Retained earnings 3047 2696
Own shares 06) 04)
Shareholders' equity 427 2 392 3
Non-controlling interests 96 87
Total equity 436 8 401 0

These financial sta! nts were approved by the Board of directors on 4th February 2011 and were signed on its behalf by Bill Ohver and
Michael Dunn

LSS paudat [

Bili Olwer Michael Dunn
Chief Executive Group Finance Director
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Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30th November 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 583 97 7)
Gains on investment property disposals (2 5) 22)
Share of (profits)/losses of jotnt ventures and associates (post-tax) 10 74 229
Investment property revaluation (gains)/losses 8 (23 2) 817
Depreciation 9 07 10
Impasrment losses on inventories 12 61 142
(Increase)decrease In Inventories (16) 65
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables (125) 06
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 290 (13 5)
Share options and share awards (02) (0 3)
Pension funding — (08)
Tax received 5 (c) 117 32
Net cash inflow from operating activittes 43 4 156
Investing activities
Investment property disposals 215 313
Investment property additions (49 0) (28 0)
Praperty, plant and equipment additions 03 (15)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired with subsidiary —_ 04
Interest received 06 14
Net cash (outflow)inflow from investing activities (21 2) 36
Financing activities
Dividends paid 7 20) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ©02) (02)
Interest paid (21 1) (17 9)
Net proceeds on 1ssue of share capital — 1016
New borrowings drawn 331 44 2
Repayment of borrowings (305) (154 8)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (207) (27 1)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 65 (79)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 48 127
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 113 48
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30th November 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m £m

Profit/(loss) for the year 383 (101 )
Pension fund

— actuarial losses 18 on {(08)
— deferred tax thereon 18 — 02
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year g2 (102 3)
Attributable to

— Equity shareholders of the Company EY D {101 7)
— Non-controlling interests 11 {0 6)
Total comprehensive income for the year 382 (102 3)
Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the two years ended 30th November 2010

Share Capital Non-
Share premium redemption Retained Own Shareholders’ controlling Total
capital accouni reserve earnings shares equity interest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 30th November 2008 121 91 03 3713 01} 3927 95 402 2
Loss for the year attnibutable

to shareholders — — — (101 1) — (1cl 1) {06) (101 7}
Pension fund actuanal losses (Note 18) — — — (0 6) — {0 6} —_ {0 6)
Total comprehensive income — —_ — (101 7} — (101 7) (0 6) (102 3)
Net shares acquired — — — — {03) 03 — (0 3)
Dividends paid — — — — - —_ ©2) {02}
Issue of share capital 79 937 — — — 1016 —_ 1016
At 30th November 2009 20.0 1028 0.3 2696 (0.4) 3923 87 4010
Profit for the year

attnbutable to shareholders — — — a7 2 — 372 11 B3
Pension fund actuanal losses (Note 18) — — — o1 —_ o1 — (0.1)
Total comprehensive income — — — 71 —_ I 11 382
Net shares acquired — — — — (02) {02) — 0.2)
Dividends paid — — — (20) — 20) 02) 22
At 30th November 2010 200 1028 0.3 3047 {0 6) 427 2 96 436 8

Own shares represent the cost of 259,414 (2009 273,330) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the shares held at

30th November 2010 was £351,246 (2009 £580,280)
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Accounting Policies
for the year ended 30th November 2010

Basis of preparaticn
The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the EU as
they apply to the Group for the year ended 30th November 2010, applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties, derivative financial
instruments and the defined benefit section of the Group’s pension scheme

The Group's functional currency s pounds sterling and its IFRS accounting policies are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of St Modwen Properties PLC and the entities it controls Control compnises
the power to gavern the financial and operating policies of the investee and 15 achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voting nghts or by
cantractual agreement A list of the principal entities controlled 1s given in Note (F} of the Company's financial statements

VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited 15 50% owned by St Modwen Properties PLC, however, under the funding agreement the Group obtains the majority
of the benefits of the entity and also retains the magority of the residual risks This entity 1s therefore consolidated in accordance with SIC 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”

All entities are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are ehminated on consolidation

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and are presented separately within
equity in the Group balance sheet

Interests In Joint ventures

The Group recognises its interest in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting Under the equity method, the interest (n the jaint venture
1s carried 1n the balance sheet at cost plus post-acguisition changes in the Group’s share of its net assets, less distnbutions receved, less any
impawrment tn value of indwidual investments The income statement reflects the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ results after interest
and tax

Financ¢ial statements of jointly controlled entities are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group Where necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies used into line with those of the Group

The Group statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group's share of any income and expense recognised by the jointly controlled entities
outside the income statement

Interests In assoclates
The Group’s interests in its associates, being those entities aver which it has significant influence and whech are neither subsidiaries nor joint
ventures, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as described above

Properties

Investment properties

Investment properties, being freehold and leasehold properties held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation and/or for undetermined future
use, are carned at fair value following initial recognition at the present value of the consideration payable To establish farr value, investment
properties are independently valued on the basis of market value Any surplus or deficit arising 1s recognised in the income statement for the penod

Once classified as an investment property, a property remains in this category until development with a view to sale commences, at which point the
asset 1s transferred to inventories at current valuation

Where an investment property i1s being redeveloped for continued use as an investment property, the property remains within investment property and
any movement 1n valuation is recognised in the income statement

Investment property disposals are recognised on completton Profits and losses ansing are recogmised through the income statement and the profit on
disposal 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

Investment properties are not depreciated

Inventories
Inventories principally compnise properties held for sale, properties under censtructton and land under option All inventories are carried at the iower
of cost and net realisable value

Cost compnises land, direct matenals and, where applicable, direct Iabour costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition When inventory includes a transfer from invesiment properties, cost 1s recorded as the book value at the date of transfer Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal
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Operating property, plant and equipment
Operating property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Such cost includes
costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation i1s provided on all operating property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each
asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows

Leasehold operating properties — over the shorter of the lease term and 25 years
Plant, machinery and equipment — over 2 to 5 years
Leases

The Group as lessee
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All
other leases are classified as operating leases

Nan-property assets held under finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease with a corresponding hability being recognised for the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease paymenis Lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the
lease hability and finance charges in the income statement so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability Non-
property assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter cf the estimated useful Iife of the asset and the lease term

Freehold interests in leasehold investment properties are accounted for as finance leases with the present value of guaranteed mimmum ground rents
included within the carrying value of the property and within long-term habihities On payment of a guaranteed ground rent, virtually all of the cost 1s
charged to the income statement, as interest payable, and the balance reduces the hability

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged In the income statement on a strasght-line basis over the lease term

The Group as lessor
Rental income fraom operattng leases 1s recognised 1n the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Income taxes
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxatton authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

The tax currently payable 1s based on the taxable result for the year The taxable resuit differs from the result as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further exciudes items that are never taxable or
deductible

Deferred income tax 1s recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 1n
the financial statements, using the rates of tax expected to apply based on legislation enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet date,
with the following exceptions

— 1n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments 1n subsidianies, joint ventures and associates, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
and

— deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, carned forward tax credits or tax losses can be utihised

Deferred income tax assets and hiabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset 1s
reahsed or labihity 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and liabihties are offset
when there 15 a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax habihities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabihttes on a net basis

Income tax 1s charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise, income tax 1s recognised in
the income statement

Pensions
The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contrnibution sections The defined benefit section 1s closed to new
members and, from 1st September 2009, te future accrual
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Accounting Policies continued
for the year ended 30th November 2010

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which attributes entitlement
to benefits to the current perod (to determine current service cost) and to the current and pnor penods (to determine the present value of defined
benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuanial adwice Past senvice costs are recognised n the income statement immediately if the benefits have
vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change 1in present value of scheme cbligations resulting from the passage of time
and is determined by applying the discount rate to the opeming present value of the benefit obligation, taking into account matenal changes in the
obligation during the year The expected return on plan assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market
returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of plan assets of contributions recewed and benefits paid dunng the year The
difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest cost I1s recognised in the income statement as other finance income or
expense

Actuarial gains and losses are recogrised in full in the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they occur The defined benehit
pension asset or hability in the balance sheet comprises the present value of the defined benefit obhgation, less any past service cost not yet
recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly

When a pension asset (net surplus) arises and the directors consider it 1s controlied by the Company such that future economic benefits will be
available to the Company, it 1s carmed forward in accordance with the requirements of IFRIC14

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised 1n the income statement in the year in which they become payable

Own shares
St Modwen Properties PLC shares held by the Group are classified in shareholders’ equity and are recognised at cost

Dividends
Dividends deciared after the balance sheet date are not recognised as habilities at the batance sheet date

Revenue recogmition

Revenue 15 recogrised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receved, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty The following
cnteria must also be met before revenue 15 recognised

Sale of property
Revenue ansing from the sale of property Is recognised on legal completion of the sale Where revenue 1s earned for development of property assets
not owned, this 1s recognised when the Group has substantially fulfilled its oblhigations in respect of the transaction

Construction conlracts
Revenue arising from construction contracts 1s recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy on construction cantracts (see below)

Rental tncome
Rental income ansing from investment properties I1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principa! outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Dwvidend income
Dvidend income from joint ventures 1s recognised when the shareholders' rights to receve payment have been established

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated rehably, revenue and costs are recogmised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the balance sheet date The extent to which the contract 15 complete 1s determined by the total costs incurred to date as a
percentage of the total anticipated costs for the entire contract Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included only to the
extent they have been agreed with the purchaser

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated rehiably, contract revenue 15 recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred where it 1s prabable they will be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the penod in which they are incurred

When 1t 15 probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immed ately
Government grants

Government grants relating to property are treated as deferred income and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned
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Share-based payments

When employee share options are exercised the employee has the choice whether to have the habiity settled by way of cash or the retention of
shares As it has been the Company's experience to satisfy the majonty of share options in cash, and new shares are not i1ssued to satisfy employee
share option plans, the Group accounts for its share option schemes as cash-settled The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at fair value
using an appropriate option pricing model and amortised through the income statement over the vesting penod The liability i1s remeasured at each
balance sheet date Rewsions to the fair value of the accrued hability after the end of the vesting period are recorded in the income statement of the
year in which they occur

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recogmised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset exptre, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity |f the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated labiity for any amounts it may have to pay If the Group retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recagnise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
recewed The Group derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the Group's abligations are discharged, cancelled, or they expire

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recogrised and carried at the lower of their oniginal inveiced value and recoverable amount Provision 1s made when there 1s
evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full Balances are written off when the probability of recevery 15 assessed as being
remote

Cash and cash equvalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and short-term deposits with banks

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables on deferred payment terms are initially recorded by discounting the nominal amount payable te net present value The
discount to norminal value 1s amortised over the period of the deferred arrangement and charged to finance costs

Interest bearing leans and borrowings
All loans and barrowings are inibially recognised at fair value less directly attnbutable transaction costs After imitial recognition, loans and borrowings
are measured at amorhised cost

Gains and losses arnising on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of habilities are recognised in finance income or finance expense as
appropriate

The effective interest rate method 15 used to charge interest to the income statement

Derwvative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its nisks associated with interest rate fluctuations Such
instruments are tnitsally recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value The
Group has determined that the derivative financial instruments in use do not qua!ify for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gains or losses
arising from changes tn the fair value of derivatives are taken to the income statement

Equily instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all its habiities Equity instruments
1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received less direct 1ssue costs

Use of estimates and judgements

To be able to prepare accounts according to generally accepted accounting principles, management must make estimates and assumptions that
affect the asset and liability items and revenue and expense amounts recorded in the financial accounts These estimates are based on the Group's
systems of internal control, historical experience and the advice of external experts (including quahfied professional valuers and actuaries) together
with various other assumphons that management and the Board of directors believe are reasonable under the circumstances The results of these
constderations form the basis for making judgements about the carrying value of assets and habihties that are not readily available from other
sources

The areas requinng the use of estimates and critical judgements that may sigmificantly impact the Group's earnings and financial position are

Going concern The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis This 1s discussed in the Business Review, under the heading
‘Financial Structure’ and adoption of the going concern assumption 1s confirmed on page 36

Valuation of investment properties Management has used the valuation performed by its independent vatuers as the fair value of its investment
properties The valuation 1s performed according to RICS rules, using appropnate levels of professional judgement for the prevailling market
conditions
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Accounting Policies continved
for the year ended 30th November 2010

Use of estmates and judgements continued

Net realisable value of inventories The Group has ongoing procedures for assessing the carrying value of inventories and identifying where this Is in
excess of net realisable value Management's assessment of any resulting prowision reguirement, 1s where applicable, supported by independent
information supplied by the external valuers The estimates and judgements used were based on information avaifable at, and pertaining to,

30th November 2010 Any subsequent adverse changes in market conditions may result in additional provisions being required

Estimation of remediation and other cosis to complete for both development and investment properties In making an assessment of these costs there
1s inherent uncertainty and the Group has developed systems of internal control to assess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of
estimates made Any changes to these estimates may impact the carrying values of investment properties and/cr tnventories

The calculation of deferred tax assets and habilitres together with assessment of the recoverability of future tax losses The recoverability of tax
losses has been assessed and the accounts reflect the extent to which management believe recovery is hkely against latent gains and future profits
anticipated to be realised on the Graup's property portfohio

Caiculairon of the net present value of pension scheme liabiiities n calculating this habihity it 1s necessary for actuanal assumptions to be made,
including discount and mortality rates and the long-term rate of return upon scheme assets The Group engages a qualified actuary to assist with
determining the assumptions to be made and evaluating these Labilities

Adoption of New and Revised Standards

Standatds affecting the financial statements

In the current year the following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted and have affected the amounts reported on the
disclosures In these financial statements

IAS 1 (rewised) Presentation of Financial Statements

1AS1 (revised) requires the production of a statement of comprehensive income setting out all items of income and expense relating to non-owner
changes in equity There is a choice between presenting comprehensive income 1n one statement or in two statements comprising an income
statement and a separate statement of comprehensive iIncome The Group has elected to present comprehensive income in two statements In
addition, IAS1 (revised) requires the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity to be presented as a primary statement The other revisions to IAS1
have not had a significant impact on the presentation of the Group's financial information

IFRS8 Operating Segments

IFRS8 requires cperating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker, which in the case of the Group 1s the Board, to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance
and 1s effective in the EU for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2009 In contrast, the predecessor Standard (IAS14 ‘Segment
Reporting') required the Group to identify two sets of segments (business and geographical), using a nsk and rewards approach, with the Group's
system of internal financial reporting to key management personnel serving only as the starting point for the identification of such segments The
Group's operating segments, whilst unchanged, are reported in accordance with {IFRSB

IAS23 (revised) Borrowing Costs

1A323 (revised) requires the capitalisation of borrowing costs directly attrbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a guahfying asset
(one that Lakes a substantial period of time to get ready for use) as part of the cost of the asset The amendment ramoves the option of iImmedately
expensing borrowing costs subject to an exemption for inventories manufactured in large numbers an a repetitive basis

The Group has evaluated its business processes and where developments are considered to fall under the requirements of 1AS23 (revised) costs are
capitalised No interest was capitalised in the year ended 30th November 2010

IFRS2 (revised) Share-based payments
The amendment to IFRS2 requires non-vesting conditions to be taken into account in the estimate of the fair value of the equity instruments The
adoption of the amendment has no impact on the Group's financial statements

IFRS7 (amended) Improving disclosures about financial instruments
IFRS7 (amended) requires disclosure of fair value measurement by level of a fair value measurement hrerarchy The required disclosures are in
Note 16 to the financial statements
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Standards adopted not affecting the financial statements
In addition the following standards and interpretations have been adopted but have had no impact on the amounts reported or the disclosures in the
financial statements

|AS27 {revised 2008) Consolidated and Separate financial statements

IAS32 {amended)IAS1 (amended) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Ansing on Liquidation

|AS39 Eligible Hedged ltems

IFRS1 (amended)1AS27 (amended) Cost of a Subsidiary, Jomntly Controlled Entity or Associate Payment Transactions
IFRS3 (revised) Business Combinations

|IFRICY (amended)/|AS39 Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

|FRIC17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

Impact of standards and 1nterpretations in 1ssue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been apphed in these financial
statements were tn 1ssue and endorsed by the EU but not vet effective

1AS24 (revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures

IAS32 (amended 2009) Classification of Rights Issues

IFRS1 (amended 2009) Add'tional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

IFRS1 (amended 2010) Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
IFRS2 (amended 2009) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

IFRIC14 (amended 20093} Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

In additien, Improvements to IFRSs, 1ssued in Apri§ 2009, 1s the most recent tranche of the Improvements to IFRS project endorsed by the EU and
has a number of minor amendments te existing IAS and IFRS which have not yet been implemented

The directors anticipate that the adeption of these standards and interpretations in future periods wilt have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group
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1. REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

2010
Rental Development Cther Total
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 351 799 64 1214
Cost of sales a7 (67 4} (33) (794}
Gross profit 264 125 31 4290
2009
Rental  Development Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 343 745 49 1137
Cost of sales (8 2} (83 8} 31 (95 1)
Gross profit /{loss} 261 (9 3} 18 186

The Group operates exclusively in the UK and all of its revenues denve from its portfolio of properties which the Group manages as one business
Therefore, the financial statements and related notes represent the results and financial posttion of the Group's sole business segment

The Group's total revenue for 2010 was £129 1m {2009 £122 7m) and in addition to the amounts above included service charge income of £6 9m
{2009 £6 1m), for which there was an equivalent expense, and interest income of £0 8m (2009 £2 9m)

Cost of sales in respect of rental income as disclosed above compnise direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) related to the
investment property portfolio and include £0 2m (2009 £0 2m) in respect of properties that did not generate any rental income

During the year the following amounts were recognised (as part of development revenue and cost of sales) in respect of construction contracts

2010 2009

£m £m

Revenue 638 277
Cost of sales (50 8) (25 3)
Gross profit 130 24

Amounts recoverable on contracts as disclosed 1n Note 11 comprise £11 6m (2009 £0 9m) of contract reverue recognised and £1 2m (2009
£1 4m) of retentions

Ameounts due to customers of £nil (2009 £nil) were included in trade and other payables in respect of contracts 1n progress at the balance sheet date

2. NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION
a Trading profit
The non-statutory measure of trading profit, which includes the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, has been calculated as set out below

2010 2009
Jont ventures Joint ventures
Group and assoclates Total Grovp and associates Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m

Net rental inncome 264 73 337 261 74 335

Development profit {1) 186 03 189 49 06 55

Gans/{losses) on disposal of

investmentsfinvestment properties 25 05 30 22 01) 21

Cther income 31 — 31 18 — 18
Administrative expenses (16 8) (03) arn (139 (0 2) (14 1)
Finance costs 2) (200) (48) (24 8) (17 5} (3 4) {20 9)
Finance income (3} 06 —_ 06 03 02 05

Trading profit 144 30 174 39 45 84

(1) Stated before the deduction of net reahisable value prowisions of Group £6 1m {2009 £14 2m), Joint ventures and associates £0 3m
(2009 £1 6m)

(2) Stated before mark-to-market of denvatives and other non-cash items of Group £4 Om (2009 £8 5m), Joint ventures and associates £0 8m
(2009 £1 8m)

(3) Stated before mark-to-market of derivatives and other non-cash items of Group £2 6m (2009 £4 Om), Joint ventures and associates £mil
(2009 £nil)
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2  NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION CONTINUED
b Property valuation gainsf{lasses)
Property valuations, including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, have been calculated as set out below
2010 2009
Joint Ventures Joint Ventures
Group and Associates Total Group and Associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
{nvestment property revaluation gains/(losses) 23.2 62 294 (817) (24 8) (106 5)
Net realisable value provisions 61) 03 (6 4) (14 2) (16) (15 8)
Property valuation gains/(losses) 171 59 230 (95 9) (26 4) (122 3)
¢ Movement in net debt
2010 2009
£m £m
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 65 (7 9}
Borrowings drawn (33 1) (44 2)
Repayment of barrowings 305 154 8
Movement 1n net debt 39 102 7
d Trading cash flow
Trading cash flows are derived from the Group cash flow statement as set cut below
2010
Operating Investing Financing
activities activities activities Total
£m £m £m £m
Net rent 264 — — 264
Property disposals B5 4 275 —_ 929
Property acquisitions (6 4) 24.1) — (30 5)
Property expenditure {54 9) (252) —_ (BO 1)
Working capital and other movements 339 — — 339
Overheads, interest and tax (16 0) 086 211 (36 5)
Trading cash flow 484 (212) 21 1) 61
Non-trading cash flows — — 04 04
Mavement In cash and cash equivalents 484 (212) (207) 65
2009
Operating Investing Financing
activities activities activities Total
£m £m £m £m
Net rent 261 — — 261
Property disposals 69 6 313 — 1008
Property acquisitions — (12 9) — (12 9)
Property expenditure (63 1) (16 6) — (79 7)
Working capital and other movements (6 5) 02 — (6 3)
Overheads, interest and tax (10 5) 14 (17 9) (27 O)
Trading cash flow 156 34 (17 9) 11
Non-trading cash flows — 02 {9 2) {9 0)
Moventent 1n cash and cash equivalents 156 36 27 1) (79)
e Net assets per share
Total equity Shareholders’ Equity
2010 2009 2010 2009
Net assets (£m) 436 8 401 © 427 2 35923
Shares 1n 1ssue {number) 200,360,931 200,360,93% 200,360,931 200,360,931
Net assets per share (pence) 2180 2001 2132 1958
Percentage increase 89% 89%
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3 OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURES
a Admimstrative expenses
Admunistrative expenses have been arrived at after charging

2010 2009
Em £m
Depreciation 0.7 10
Operating lease costs 10 11
b Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 15 as follows
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Fees payable for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 112 107
The audit of subsidiary companies and joint ventures pursuant to legistation 112 112
Total audit fees 224 219
Other services pursuant to legislation 51 309
Tax services 460 284
Total non-audit fees 511 593
Total fees 135 812

The above amounts include all amounts charged in respect of joint venture undertakings QOther services pursuant to legistation for 2009 included

£259,000 in relation to the Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer

c Employees

The average number of full-time employees (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows

2010 2009
Number Number
Property 125 127
Leisure and other activities 64 61
Administration 39 40
228 228

The total payroll costs of these employees were
2010 2009
£m £m
Wages and salanes 99 91
Social secunty costs 1.2 11
Pension costs 0.3 o7
114 109

Details of the directors’ remuneration is given 1n the directors' remuneration report
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3. OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

d. Share-hased payments

The Group has a save as you earn share option scheme open to all employees Employees must remam in service for a penod of five years from
the date of grant before exercising their options The option period ends six months following the end of the vesting period The Group also has an
executive share option scheme and performance share plan {PSP), full details of which are given in the directors’ remuneration report

The following table illustrates the movements in share options during the year As the PSP includes the grant of options at £nil exercise price, the
weighted average prices below are calculated including and excluding the options under this plan

2010 2009
Wetghted average pnice Weighted average price

Number of All options Excluding Number of All options Excluding

options £ PSP E options £ PSP £

Outstanding at start of year 6,459,991 2.00 248 4,920,691 288 317
Re-basing of options following 1ssue of share capital — — — 716,635 (0 39) (0 44)
Granted 2,603,001 146 178 2,815,046 142 186
Forfeited (29,143) (2 99) {2 99) (535,263) (3 28) (3 28)
Lapsed (2,548,328} (2 30) (2 92) (513,700 (4 78) (4 78)
Exercised {25,960) {1 25) (1 25) (943.,4186) {1 08) (1 08)
Qutstanding at end of year 6,459,561 166 2m 6,459,991 200 246
Exercisable at year end 1,068,363 277 277 1,144,467 270 270

Share options are priced wsing a Black—Scholes valuation model The fair values calculated and the assumptions used are as follows

(Credit)/charge

to income Risk-free Expected Dividend Share

statement Interest rate volatility yield price

£m % % % £*

As at 30th November 2010 02 07-24 54.4-675 18 165
As at 30th November 2009 06 01-22 01-802 — 228

* Based on 90 day moving average

The fair value of the balance sheet hability in respect of share options outstanding at the year end was £1 8m (2009 £1 8m) and included £1 1m
(2009 E£0 9m) in respect of options that had vested at the year end

In arnving at fair value it has been assumed that, when vested, shares options are exercised 1n accordance with hustonical trends  Expected volatihty
was determined by reference to the histarical volahihty of the Group's share price over a penod consistent with the expected life of the options

The werghted average share price at the date of exercise was £1 94 (2009 £2 25) The executive share options outstanding at the year end had a
range of exercise prices between 97p and 410p {2009 97p and 456p) with PSP options exercisable at £nil {2009 £nil) Qutstanding options had a
weighted average maximum remaining contractual life of 8 1 years (2009 6 5 years)
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4  FINANCE COST AND FINANGCE INCOME

2010 2009

£m £m

Interest payable on borrowings (19 8) (17 3)
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees o 07
Amortisation of discount on deferred payment arrangements (t 6) (17}
Head rents treated as finance leases (02) (02)
Mavement in fair value of interest rate derivatives —_ (47}
Interest on pension scheme liabtlities (Note 18) (14) (14)
Total finance cost 240 (26 0)

The finance cost on interest rate derivatives derives from financial liabihities held at fair value through profit or loss All other finance costs derive from

frnancial habihties measured at amortised cost

2010 2009
£m £m
Interest recewvable on cash deposits 06 14
Credit in respect of discount on deferred receivables 02 15
Movement in fair value of interest rate dervatives 09 —
Expected return on pension scheme assets (Note 18) 195 14
Total finance income 32 43
5 TAXATION
a Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activittes
20190 2009
£m £m

Tax {creditY/charge in the income statement
Corporation tax
Current year tax —_ —_
Adjustments in respect of previous years mn (12)

on {12)
Deferred tax
Reversal of temporary differences (10 41
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation {19 (17 9)
Impact of tax losses 17 {2 1)
Adjustments in respect of previous years a5 {0 6)

n (16 5)
Total tax credit in the income statement (08) (17 7)
Tax relating to items charged to equity
Deferred tax
Actuanial losses on pension schemes — 02)
Tax credit in the statement of comprehensive income — {0 2)
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5. TAXATION CONTINUED
b Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2010 2009
£m £m

Profit/{loss) before tax 37.5 (119 4)
Less Joint ventures and associates (7.4) 229
Pre-tax profit/{loss) attnibutable to the Group 301 (96 5)
Corporation tax at 28% (2009 28%) 84 (27 O
Permanent differences 06) 03
Short-term tirming differences 09) —
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation @) 50
Difference between chargeable gains and accounting profit 69 (12)
Utihisation of tax losses not previously recognised (59) —
Deferred tax asset not recognised —_ 76
Current year credit {12) {15 9)
Adjustments I1n respect of previous years 04 {18)

{0 8) (17 7
Effective rate of tax (3%) 18%

The post-tax results of joint ventures and associates are stated after a tax charge of £0 7m (2009 £0 8m credit) The effective tax rate for the Group
including joint ventures and associates s a credit of 0 5% (2009 15 4%)

The Finance {(No 2) Act 2010 was enacted on 21st July 2010 which reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 27% from 1st April 2011 Further
reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1st Apnl 2014 This has not been enacted at the balance
sheet date and, therefore, 15 not included in these financial statements

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by 1st Apnil 2014 are expected to be enacted separately each year
If the deferred tax assets and habilities of the Group were all to reverse after 2014, the effect of the changes from 27% to 24% would be to reduce the
net deferred tax hability by £0 1m

¢ Balance sheet

2010 2009

Corporation Deferred Corporation Deferred

tax tax tax tax

£m £m £m £m

Balance at start of the year 17 14 57 181
Credit to the income statement on {07) (12) {16 5)
Credit directly to equity — — — 02)
Net refund 17 — 32 —
Balance at end of the year 23 07 77 14

An analysis of the deferred tax prowided by the Group 15 given below
2010 2009

Asset Liabihity Net Asset Liabthty Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Property revaluations — 41 41 —_ 133 133
Capital allowances -— 47 47 — 47 47
Appropriations to trading stock — 06 06 — 08 o8
Unutilised tax losses (5 3) - (5 3) (132) — (13 2)
Other temporary differences (34) — 34 (42 — (4 2)

e87n 9.4 07 (17 4) 188 14
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5. TAXATION CONTINUED

At the balance sheet date, the Group has

— unused tax losses in relation to 2010 and prior years of £6 6m (2009 £17 5m), of which £5 3m (2009 £9 9m) has been recognised as a
deferred tax asset, and

— deductions of £ml {2009 £3 3m) that witl be available in subsidiary companies in future periods and have been recogrised in full as a deferred
tax asset

A deferred tax asset has been recognised on the basis that the losses or deductions will shelter the fatent gains anticipated to be realised on the
Group’s property portfolio including those reflected in the deferred tax lability for property revaluations and future trading losses

A deferred tax asset of £1 3m (2009 £7 6m) has not been recognised in respect of current and prior year tax losses as it 1s not considered certain
that there will be taxable profits available in the short-term against which these can be offset

d Factors that may affect future tax charges
Based on current capital investment plans, the Group expects to be able to continue to claim capital allowances in excess of depreciation 1n

future years

The benefits of any tax planning are not recognised by the Group until the cutcome 1s reasonably certain

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted earmnings per share 1s set out below

2010 2009

Number of Number of
shares shares*

Weighted number of shares in 1ssue 200,098,045 169,276,058
Weighted number of dilutive shares 346,115 —

200,444,160 169,276,058

2010 2009

£m £m

Profit/{loss) attributable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted) 372 {101 1)
2010 2009

pence pence

Basic and diluted profit/{loss) per share 186 (59 7)

Shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from the above calculations

The Group's share options are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments In calculating diluted earnings per share, earnings have been
adjusted for changes which would have resulted from share options being classified as equity-settled Where applicable, the number of shares
included in the calculation has also been adjusted accordingly

* |n 2009 the Group undertook 2 Firm Placing and Placing and Dpen Dffer resulting in the issue of 79 586 977 shares on Bth June 2009 The number of shares in 13sue used 1n the above caleulation for 2009 reflects the lower number ef skares in 1ssue
through ta the date of the Firm Placing and Pfaciag arnd Open Cffer

7 DIVIDENDS
Diwvidends paid during the year were in respect of the interim dividend for 2010 The proposed final dividend is subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting and has not been included as a liabulity (v these financial statements

2010 2009

p per share £m p per share £m
Paid
Final dnadend in respect of previous year — — — —
Interim dividend i1n respect of current year 10 20 — -
Total 10 20 — —
Proposed
Current year final dividend 20 40 — —

The Employee Benefit Trust waives its entitlement to dividends
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Freehold Leasehold
investment investment
properties properties Total
£m £m £m
Fair value
At 30th November 2008 467 1 347 2 814 3
Additions — new properties 152 — 152
Other additions 138 60 198
Net transfers from/(to) inventories (Note 12) 154 (07) 147
Disposals (100 (9 4) (19 4)
Deficit on revaluation {45 6) (36 1) 817)
At 30th November 2009 4559 3070 7629
Additions — new properties 238 — 238
Other additions 98 154 252
Net transfers from inventories (Note 12) 130 08 138
Transfer on acquisition of residual freehold 33 (33) —_
Disposals (8 9) (120Q) (20 9)
Gain on revaluation 104 128 232
At 30th November 2010 507 3 3207 8280
Investment properttes were valued at 30th Novermnber 2010 and 2009 by King Sturge LLP, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal
and VYaluation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value King Sturge LLP are professionally quahfied
independent external valuers and have recent experience in the relevant location and category of the properties being valued
The historical cost of investment properties at 30th November 2010 was £754 9m (2009 £717 7m)
As at 30th November 2010, £709 4m (2009 £669 2m) of investment property was pledged as security for the Group's lean facihities
Included within leasehold investment properties are £3 9m (2009 £3 9m) of assets held under finance leases
9 QPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating
plant
QOperating and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 30th November 2008 26 50 76
Additions 44 n4 48
Disposals (01 086 (¢}
At 30th November 2009 69 48 117
Additions — 03 03
Dispasals — (0 3) (0 3)
At 301h November 2010 69 48 17
Depreciation
At 30th November 2008 04 29 33
Charge for the year 01 09 10
Disposals — (0 5) (05)
At 30th Novemmber 2009 05 33 38
Charge for the year 01 06 07
Disposals — {0 2) (02)
At 30th Novemher 2010 06 37 43
Net book value
At 30th November 2008 22 21 43
At 30th November 2009 64 15 79
At 30th November 2010 63 11 74
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9 OPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED
Tenure of operating properties

2010 2009
£m £m
Freehold 36 36
l.easehold 27 28
63 64
10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
The Group's share of the trading results for the year of its joint ventures and assocates 1s
2010 2009
Key Property Other joint Key Property Other joint
Investments ventures and Investments  ventures and
Limited associates Total Limited associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £Em
Income statements
Revenue 144 44 188 259 12 271
Net rental income 66 07 73 72 02 74
Development profit/(loss) —_ —_ — 1o — (10)
Gains/(losses) on disposals of investment properties 04 01 05 01 — on
Investment property revaluation gains/(losses) 62 — 62 (24 4) (0 4) (24 8)
Admimistrative expenses 02) o1n 03) on [(s BN (02)
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax 130 07 137 (18 4) (0 3) (187)
Finance cost (4.9) (12) (56) {4 5) [(alr}] (52)
Finance income — —_ — 02 —_ 02
Profit/{loss) befare tax 86 (05) 81 (22 7) 10 (237)
Taxatron {0 3) (0 4) 0N 06 02 08
Profit/{loss) for the year 83 09 74 (22 1) (08) 229)
Included in other joint ventures and associates above are profits from associated companies of £0 3m (2009 £0 2m fosses)
The Group's share of the balance sheet of its joint ventures and associates 1$
2010 2009
Key Property Other joint Key Property Other joint
tnvestments ventures and lnvestments  ventures and
Limited associates Total Limited associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance Sheets
Non-current assets 1195 208 140 3 116 7 159 1326
Current assets 17 145 262 136 18¢ 325
Current habihties (11 9) agn (220) (120 6 4) (18 4)
Non-current habilities (74 9) (20 2) (951) (82 2) (23 2) (105 4)
Net assets 44 4 50 494 361 52 413
Equity at start of year 361 52 413 58 2 60 64 2
Transfer from joint venture to subsidiary undertaking — 07 07 — — —
Profit/(loss) for the year 83 09 74 (22 1) (0 8) (229
Equity at end of year 4.4 50 494 361 52 413

Included in other joint ventures and associates above are net assets of £2 7m (2009 £2 4m) in relation to associated compantes These net assets
compnise total assets of £3 9m {2009 £3 6m) and total habihities of £1 2m (2009 £1 2m)
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10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES CONTINUED

Joint venture companies and associates compnse

Name Status Interest Activity
Key Property Investments Limited Joint venture b0% Property investment and development
Barton Business Park Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Sowcrest Limited Joint venture 50% Property investment and development
Holaw {462) Limited Jeint venture 50% Property investment
Skypark Development Partnership LLP Joint venture 50% Property development
Chertsey Road Properttes Limited Joint venture 50% Property investment
St Modwen Hungerford Liruted Joint venture 50% Property development
Coed Darcy Limited Associate 49% Property investment and development
Baglan Bay Company Limited Associate 25% Property management

Many of the joint ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, as 1s common for such arrangements

On 1st June 2010 the Group increased its shareholding in Shaw Park Developments Limited to 100% No goodwill arose on increasing the stake of the

Group in the entity, which 1s now accounted for as a subsidiary

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2010 2009
£Em £m
Non-current
Other debtors 82 52
Current
Trade recelvables 23 67
Prepayments and accrued mcome 73 79
Other debtors 102 24 4
Amounts recoverable on contracts 128 23
Amounts due from joint ventures 127 57
453 a7 0
IFRS? disclosures in respect of financial assets included above are provided In Note 16
12. INVENTORIES
2010 2009
£m £m
Properties held for sale 316 552
Properties under construction 1128 1153
Land under option 214 222
176 192 7
The movement 1n inventories during the two years ended 30th Novernber 2010 Is as follows
£m
At 30th November 2008 2281
Additions 631
Net transfers {o investment property (Note 8) {14 7}
Disposals {transferred to development cost of sales) (Note 1) (83 8)
At 30th November 2009 192 7
Additions 601
Net transfers to investment property (Note 8} (13 8)
Disposals {transferred to development cost of sales) (Note 1) (67 4)
At 30th November 2010 1716

The directors consider afl inventones to be current in nature The operational cycle 1s such that a proportion of inventories will not be realised
within 12 months It 1s not possible to determine with accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this will be subject to a number of 1ssues

including the strength of the property market

Included within disposals of inventories are net realisable value prowisions made during the year of £6 1m (2009 £14 2m)

As at 30th November 2010, £48 3m (2009 £67 8m) of inventory was pledged as security for the Group's loan facilities
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13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2010 2009
£m £m
Current
Trade payables 157 150
Amounts due to joint ventures 41 35
Other payables and accrued expenses 764 701
Provision for share options 02 09
Other payables on deferred terms 184 304
Denvative financial instruments 183 193
1331 139 2
Non-current
Other payables and accrued expenses 46 4 215
Provision for share options 16 09
Other payables on deferred terms 1632 162 6
Ftnance lease habilities (head rents) 3g 39
2151 1889

IFRS7 disclosures in respect of financeal habihttes included above are provided in Note 16
The payment terms of the other payables on deferred terms are subject to contractual commitments [n the normal course of events the payments will

be made I1n line with etther the disposal of investment properties held on the batance sheet, or the commencement of development Net cash outflows
on the settlement of the deferred consideration will therefore be limited

14 BORROWINGS

2010 2009
£m £m
Current
Floating rate unsecured loan notes — 04
— 04
Non-current
Bank loans repayable between one and two years 1079 559
Bank loans repayable between two and five years 2183 267 3
326 2 3232

Each bank has their borrowings secured by a fixed charge over a discrete portfolio of certain of the Group’s property assets
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14. BORROWINGS CONTINUED

Matunity profile of committed bank facilities

The majority of the Group's bank debt I1s provided by bilateral revolving credit facilities, providing the flexibility to draw and repay loans as required
The matunty profile of the Group's commutted facilities is set out below

2010
Floating rate borrowings Interest rate swaps
Drawn Undrawn Tatal Earhiest termination Latest termtnation
£m £m £m £m %* £m %*
Less than one yeart —_ 50 50 80O 479 600 483
One to two years 1079 56 1 1640 Q00 543 800 554
Two to three years 300 400 700 100 481 200 465
Three to four years 897 B3 1250 100 480 — -
Four to five years a8 6 56 4 1550 40.0 269 400 269
More than five years — — — 300 432 600 451
Total 326 2 1928 5190 2600 463 2600 463
2009
Floating rate borrowings Interest rate swaps
Drawn Undrawn Total Earliest termination Latest termination
£m £m £m £m Y* £m Yo
Less than one yeart 04 50 54 1100 536 — —
QOne to two years 559 341 900 1300 4 67 800 470
Two to three years 162 4 916 254 0 —_ —_ 800 554
Three to four years 280 420 700 — — 400 4 56
Four to five years 769 231 1000 — — — —
More than five years —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 400 4 87
Total 3236 1958 5194 2400 499 2400 499

* Weighted averape (nterest rate
1 Inaddition to the principal amounts included above £3 7m (2008 £3 7m) of interest payable was committed at the year end These amounts afl fall due within three menths of the year end

Certain of the nterest rate swaps are extendable at the bank's option, therefore, the tables above show the dates of normal termination and extended
termination

£22 6m (2009 £23 1m) of the undrawn committed bank facilities are ning fenced for VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited

The average rate of interest payable, before taking into account the effects of hedging, on borrowings outstanding during the year was 2 8% (2009
2 9%} At 30th November 2010 the weighted average facility maturity of the bank debt was 3 years (2009 3 years)

Interest rate profile
The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings after taking into account the effects of hedging 1s
Welghted
average
fixed Weighted
Floating Fixed interest maturrty of
Total Rate debt Rate debt rate dervatives
£m £m £m (%) {years)*
At 30th Novemher 2010 326 2 66 2 2600 483 337
At 30th Novernber 2009 3236 836 2400 498 109

* Based on earliest termination dates
The Group's denvative financial instruments, which are classified as fair vafue through profit or loss, consist of sterling denominated interest swaps

from floating rate to fixed rata and range from 2 46% to 5 97% (2009 4 32% to 5 97%) In addition the Group has a cap at 7 5% on a further
£11m (2009 £55m) of floating rate debt Details of the change in fair value of dervatives charged to the income statement are disclosed in Note 4
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15 LEASING
Cperating lease comimitments where the Group 15 the lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises, motor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases Future aggregate minimum lease rentals

payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

In one year or less 07 13
Between cne and five years 29 26
In five years or more 10 15
46 54

Operating leases whete the Group s the lessor

The Group leases out its Investment properties under operating leases The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

In one year or less 215 272
Between one and five years mni 711
In five years or maore 1937 178 6
2923 2769

Contingent rents, calculated as a percentage of turnover for a imited number of tenants, of £0 4m (2009 £0 3m) were recogmised duning the year

Obhigations under finance leases
Finance lease liabihties payable in respect of certain leasehold nvestment properties are as follows

2010
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m
Less than one year 02 02 -_
Between one and five years 09 09 —
More than five years 675 636 39
686 647 39
2009
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Principal
£m £m £m
Less than one year 02 02 —
Between one and five years 09 09 —
More than five years &7 7 638 39
688 649 39

Finance leases are for periods of up to 999 years from inception and a discount rate of 6 0% (2009 6 0%) has been used to denve the fair value of

the principal amount outstanding Al lease obligations are denominated in sterling
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories and classes of financial assets and hahiliies

2010 2009
Financial assets £Em £m
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents a 113 48
Trade and other recevables a 258 364
I 412
2010 2009
Financial hiabilhities £m £m
Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss b 183 193
Amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts a 326 2 3236
Trade and other payables a 9203 62 2
Other payables on deferred terms a 1816 1930
Finance lease liabthties {head rents) a 39 39
6203 6020

Trade and other receivables above comprise other debtors, trade recevables and amounts due from joint ventures as disclosed in Note 11, for current
and non-current amounts, after deduction of £7 6m (2002 £7 9m) of non-financial assets

Trade and other payables above comprise trade payables, amounts due to joint ventures and other payables and accrued expenses as disclosed in
Note 13, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £52 3m (2009 £47 9m) of non-financal liabilities

a) The directors consider that the carrying amount recorded in the financial statements approx:mates their fair value
b) Denvative financial instruments are carried at fair value The fair value 15 calculated using quoted market prices relevant for the term and
Instrument

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and hahifittes
Financial assets and financial habilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, are required to be grouped nto Levels 1 10 3
based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

s Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1dentical assets,

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from tnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
either directly (+ e as prices) or indirectly {1 e derived from prices), and

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)

Derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are the only financial instruments held by the Group at fair value The net
hability of £18 3m recogmised as at 30th November 2010 (2009 £19 3m) is categonsed as a Level 2 fair value measurement

Capial nsk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entittes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern whilst maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Company consists of debt (as disclosed tn
Note 14), cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retatned earntngs as disclosed in the Group statement of
changes in equity



72 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report 2010

Financial Statements

Notes to the Accounts continued
for the year ended 30th November 2010

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Market nsk

Market nisk 1s the potential adverse change in Group income or the Group net worth arising from movements 1n interest rates or other market prices
Interest rate risk 1s the Group's principal market risk and 1s considered below

Interest rate risk management The Group Is exposed to Interest rate nsk as 1t borrows funds at vanable interest rates The Group uses a combination
of variable rate borrowings and interest rate swaps to manage the nsk

Interest rate sensitivity The following table details the Group's sensitivity, after tax, to a 1% change tn interest rates based on year end levels of debt

2010 2009

1% increase In Interest rates £m £m
Interest on barrowings 23) {23)
Effect of interest rate swaps 19 17
(04) {06)

2010 2009

1% decrease in interest rates £m £m
Interest on borrowings 23 23
Effect of interest rate swaps {19) {(+7)
04 D6

Credit nisk
Credit nisk 1s the nisk of financial loss where counterparties are not able to meet their obligations as they fall due

The credit sk on the Group’s liqud funds and derivative financial instruments 1s hmited because the counterparties are banks with high {(generally
AA) credit ratings Bank deposits are only placed with banks in accordance wath Group policy that specities rumimum credit rating ang maximum
expasure Credit risk on denvatives 1s closely monitored

Trade and other receivables consist of amounts due from a large number of parties spread across geographical areas The Group does not have any
significant concentrations of credit nsk as the tenant base 1s large and diverse with the largest individual tenant aceounting for £1 5m (2009
£2 2m) of gross rental income

The carrying amount of financial assets, as detailed above, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
Included within trade and other recevables 1s £0 7m (2009 £1 Om) which 1s provided against as it represents estimated irrecoverable amounts

This allowance has been determined by a review of all significant balances that are past due considering the reason for non-payment and the
creditworthtness of the counterparty A reconcihiation of the changes i this account during the year 1s provided below

2010 2009
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £m £m
At start of year 10 07
Impairment losses recognised 06 07
Amounts wrnitten off as irrecoverable (05) 02)
Impairment losses reversed (0 4) (02)
At end of year 07 10

Trade and other receivables include £0 6m (2008 £2 4m) which are past due as at 30th November 2010 for which no provision has been made
because the amounts are considered recoverable The following table provides an ageing analysis of these balances

2010 2009
Number of days past due but not impaired £m £m
1-30 days 03 11
31-60 days -_— 02
60 days + 03 11

06 24
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Liquidity nisk

Liquidity nsk 1s the risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fail due The Group
manages hquidity nisk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, matching the maturnity profiles of iinancial assets and habilities and
through the use of bilateral facilities, overdrafts and cash with a range of matunty dates to ensure continuity of funding

The economic chimate, although improved, continues to provide a difficult backdrop to the Group's operations As such, the focus conttnues to be on
managing cash flows and forward commitments, whilst centinuing to marshal sites through the planning and remediation process and undertaking
development on [argely pre-let or pre-sold opportunities

The maturity profile of the anticipated future cash flows for bank loans and overdrafts 1s shown in Note 14 The maturity profile for the Group’s other
non-derivative financial Liabilities, on an undiscounted basis 1s as follows

Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 More than
one month months to 1 year years 5 years Total
2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 18.3 88 133 47 3 677 1554
Other payables on deferred terms — 100 84 1626 50 1860
183 188 217 2099 727 M4

Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 More than
one manth months to 1 year years 5 years Total
2009 £m Em £m Em Em £m
Trade and other payables 165 116 126 224 677 1308
Other payables on deferred terms — 119 190 164 9 77 2035
166 235 318 187 3 754 334 3

The Group's approach to cash flow, financing and bank covenants 1s discussed further in the financial review section of the business review on
page 18

17. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary
10p shares
No £m
Authorised
Equity share capital
At start and end of year 250,000,000 250
Allotted and fully pad
Equity share capita!
At start and end of year 200,360,931 200

See Note 3d for details of outstanding aptions to acquire ordinary shares
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18 PENSIONS
The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnibution sections The defined benefit section 15 closed to new
members and, from 1st September 2009, 1s also closed to future accrual The income statement includes

— acharge of £0 1m (2009 £0 5m credit) for the defined benefit section, incorporating a curtailment gain of £l (2009 £0 7m}, and
— acharge of £0 1m (2009 £0 4m) for the defined contribution section

The last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 5th Apnl 2008, when the market value of the net assets of the scheme was £32 9m, a
funding level of 104% The valuation was performed using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Methed' under IAS19 The main actuarial assumptions were

Investment rate of return pre-retirement 63%pa

post-retirement 48%pa
Increase In earnings* 66%pa
Increase In pensions 36%pa

* Capped to 5 6% for certain members

The actuanal valuation of the defined benefit section, a final salary scheme, was updated to 30th November 2010 on an IAS basis by a qualified
independent actuary The major assumphions used by the actuary were

2010 2009 2008
Rate of Increase In salaries * —_ — 4 8%
Rate of tncrease in deferred pensions 28% 3 6% 2 8%
Rate of increase in pensicns in payment
Pre 6th Apnl 1997 benefits 30% 30% 28%
Post 5th Apr{ 1997 benefits 35% 36% 28%
Discount rate 95% 5 5% 6 2%
Inflation assumption 28% 3 6% 2 8%

*  Fallowng the closure of the defined benefit section to futvre acerual the assumption regarding the rate of increase in salanes 1s no longer apphicable as retirement benefits will be hased on salares at 31t August 2009 Benefits eamed up to
the pasnt of the scheme closure will be protected and wik be increased in ling with enflation subject to a mawmum of 5% per annum From 2010 the basis of the infatien assumption has been ameaded, in fing with market practice from the
Retail Prce Indexto the Consumer Pnce Index.

The mortahty rates adopted are from the PAS2 year of birth and medium cohort tables twhich assume that, for example, male members who are
currently retired are expected to draw thair pensions for 26 8 years and non retired members for 27 7 years, based on the normal retirement age
of 60)

The Group expects to make contributions of £0 2m to the defined benefit section of the scheme in 2011 and in future years

The fair values of assets in the defined benefit section of the scheme and the expected rates of return, based on market expectations, were

2010 2009 2008

% £m % £m % £m

Equities 57 103 56 170 59 133
Bonds 55 76 54 14 72 05
Property 57 85 56 84 59 99
Cash and other assets 42 08 41 03 44 12
21.2 271 249

Actuanal value of habilities 247) (26 9) (23 8)
Unrecognised surplus (2 5) (02) (13)

Surplus mn the scheme — — —
Related deferred tax hability — — —

Fair value of pension asset net of deferred tax — —_ —

The cumulative amount of actuaral gains and losses (before unrecognised surplus of £2 5m) recorded in the Group statement of recognised income
and expense 15 a gain of £0 2m {2009 £2 Om loss}
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18 PENSIONS CONTINUED
Analysis of the amcunt (charged)/credited to cperating profit
2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m
Current service cost 02 02) (0 4)
Curtaiiment gain - 07 —
Total operating {charge)/credit o2 05 {0 4}
Analysis of the amount creditedf{charged) to finance costs and income
2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 15 14 20
interest on pension scheme habilities (14) 14 (186)
01 — 04

The actual return on pension scheme assets was a gain of £2 4m (2009 £3 2m) The expected return on pension scheme assets was calculated
assuming cash and gilts will make returns in ine with the yield on the 20 year gilt index and that equities and properties will return 1 5% above this
Corporate bonds have been assumed to return in Iine with the yield on the 1boxx over 15 year corporate bond index

Analysis of the amount recogmised 1n the Group statement of comprehensive income

2010 2009 2008
Em £m £m
Difference between expected and actual return on assets 09 18 (8 9)
Experience gains and losses ansing on fair value of scheme habilities 07) 37 (3 8)
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions underlying
the farr value of the scheme labilities 20 74 76
Change in unrecognised surplus z23) 11 47
Total actuarial toss (01) (08 (O 4)
Analysis of the movement in the fair value of the scheme lhabilities
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m

Beginning of year 259 236 290 311 298
Movement in year

Current service cost a2 Q2 04 05 a5

Employee contributions —_ o1l 01 01 01

Interest cost 14 14 16 15 15

Actuanal gains and losses (13) 37 39 (30) —

Benefits paid (25) {14) (3 6) (12) (0 8)

Curtailment gain — (0 7) — —_ —
End of year 247 269 236 290 311
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18 PENSIONS CONTINUED
Analysis of the movement in the fair value of the scheme assets

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Beginning of year 211 24 9 350 339 293
Movement in year
Expected return on scheme assets 15 14 20 18 16
Contnbutions by employer 02 03 04 06 11
Employee contributions — 01 01 01 01
Actuanal gains and losses 09 18 (90) (02) 26
Benefits paid {25) (1 4) {3 6) {12) (0 8)
End of year 2712 271 249 350 3349
Surplus in scheme at the year end 25 02 13 60 28
Unrecognrised surplus (2 5) (02) (13) (6 0) —
Net surplus — — — — 28
History of experience gams and losses
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets
Amount 09 18 Q0 (02) 26
Percentage of scheme assets 33% 6 6% (35 7%) (0 3%) 8 0%
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities
Amount 07 37 (38) 30 (11)
Percentage of fair value of scheme habilities 28% (13 8%) 16 1% 10 3% 35%
Changes in assumptions underlying the fair value of scheme liabilities
Amount 20 (7 4) 76 58 c9
Percentage of fair value of scheme Labilities (81%) 27 5% {32 2%) (20 0%) (2 9%)
Change In unrecognised surplus (23) 11 47 (6 0) —
Total actuanal (loss}gain recognised in the statement of
recognised iIncome and expense
Amount 01) (08 (04) (33) 25
Percentage of present value of scheme fiabilities (0 4%) (3 0%) {1 7%) (11 4%%) 8 0%
Deferred taxation attributable to pension movements (Note 5) —_ 02 01 09 07
Penston scheme movement for the year net of deferred tax 01 086) (03) (24) 18

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30th November 2010 the Greup had contracted capital expenditure of £18,153,000 (2009 £796,000) In addition the Group's share of the
centracted capital expenditure of its joint venture undertakings was £596,000 (2009 £1,593,000) All capital commitments relate to investment
properties

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has a joint and several unlimited liability with Vincy PLC and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of the financial
performance of VSM Estates (Heldings) Limited (“VSM”"} This 1s a guarantee in the ardinary course of business and would require the guarantars to
step into VSM's place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL Completion of the project 1s not considered onerous as the forecast revenues exceed
the anticipated costs and it 15 not expected that there would be any net outflow in this regard

The Group Is also party to a joint and several guarantee to Fortis Bank in respect of the performance of Sowcrest Limited which 1s hmited to £16 Om
(2009 £18 4m)
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21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions between the Group and its non wholly owned subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are all undertaken on an arms length basis and
are detailed as follows

Key Property Investments Limited ('KPI')
During the year the Group provided management and construction services to KPI for which it received fees totalling £10 9m (2009 £6 5m) The
balance due to the Group at year end was £0 6m (2009 £0 3m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

Holaw (462) Limited (‘Holaw')
During the year Holaw repaid £nil of its lean (2009 £0 2m) The balance due to the Group at the year end was £0 3m (2009 £0 3m) No interest 1s
charged on this balance

Barton Business Park Limited (‘Barton’)
During the year the Group borrowed an additional £0 5m from Barton (2009 £ml) The balance due to Barton at the year end was £3 9m (2009
£3 4m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

Sowcrest Limited ('Sowcrest’)
Durmg the year the Group provided management services to Sowcrest for which 1t received fees totalling £mil (2009 £0 2m)

In additien, during the year £7 3m was paid to Sowcrest (2009 £3 6m) leaving an amount due from Sowcrest at the year end of £11 3m (2009
£4 0m) Interest 1s chargeable on £8 5m (2009 £1 4m) of the amount outstanding at a fixed rate of 10% (2009 10%}

Skypark Development Partnership (‘Skypark’)

The balance due to the Group from Skypark at the year end was £0 6m (2009 £C 3m), of which £0 2m (2009 £0 2m) relates to loan notes 1ssued to
the Group n the year The remaining £0 4m (2009 £0 1m) relates to purchase ledger funding provided by the Group No interest 1s charged on these
balances

Chertsey Road Properties Limited (‘GRP’)
During the year CRP repaid £0 2m of its loan {2009 borrowed £0 3m) The balance due to the Group at the year end was £0 1m (2009 £0 3m) No
interest 1s charged on this balance

5t Modwen Hungerford Limtted (‘Hungerford’)
During the year the Group loaned £nil to Hungerford (2009 £0 6m) The balance due to the Group at the year end was £0 6m (2009 £0 6m) No
interest 1s charged on this balance

Coed Darcy Limited (*CDL)

During the year CDL repaid £0 2m of its loan The balance due to the Group at the year end was £mil (2009 £0 2m) No interest is charged on this
balance

Branston Properties Limited (‘Branston’)

During the year the Group entered into an option to acquire the entire 1ssued share capital of Branston, a company 1in which the family of Simon Clarke
has a financial interest, at market value The price paid for the oplion was £0 1m and exercise of this 1s contingent on certain planning milestones
being achieved

St Modwen Pension Scheme
The Group occupies offices owned by the pension scheme with a value of £0 5m (2009 £0 5m) with an annual rental payable of £0 1m (2008
£0 1m) The balance due to the Group at the vear end was £mil (2009 £0 5m)
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21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS CONTINUED

Non-wholly owned subsidtanies

The Company provides adrministrative and management services and provides a central purchase ledger system to subsidiary companies In addition,
the Company also operates a central treasury function which lends to and borrows from subsidiary undertakings as appropriate Management fees
and interest charged/f{credited} during the year and net balances due (to)/from subsidiaries in which the Company has a less than 90% interest were
as follows

Management fees Interest Balance
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Limited — — o1 {01) (39) (74)
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration {Investments) Limited —_ _ — — (0 5) {03)
Uttoxeter Estates Limited — — — — (0 6) 02)
Widnes Regeneration Limited — — — 01 23 30
Trentham Leisure Limited _— 02 19 12 238 224
Norton & Proffitt Developments Limited — — — — 02) (03}
VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited 02 02 — — 99) {8 5}
02 04 18 12 110 87

All amounts due to the Group are unsecured and will be settled 1in cash All amounts above are stated before provisions for doubtful debts of £nil
(2009 £0 7m) No guarantees have been given or received from related parties

Key management personnel
The directors are considered to be the Group’s key management personnel and their remuneration s disclosed in the directors’ remuneration report
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as at 30th November 2010
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets {E) 06 07
Investments held as fixed assets (F) 3285 2393
3291 2400
Current asset
Debtors (8] 4736 4750
Cash at bank and 1n hand 19 02
Current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year (H) (149 4) (149 2)
Net current assets 3261 3260
Total assets less current liabilities 6552 566 0
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year (H) (216 1) (192 2)
Net assets 4391 3738
Gamtal and reserves
Called up share capital (K} 200 200
Share premium account (L) 1028 1028
Capital redemption reserve (L) 03 03
Revaluation reserve (L) 2516 164 7
Profit and loss account (L) 620 86 4
Own shares (L} (06} 04
Equity shareholders’ funds 4391 3738

These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 4th February 2011 and were signed on its behalf by Bill Oliver and
Michael Dunn

IO et}

Ball Qliver Michael Dunn
Chief Executive Group Finance Director
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(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basts of preparation
The accounts and notes have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK GAAP on a going concern basis

Compliance with SSAP19 “Accounting for Investment Properties™ requires departure from the Companies Act 2006 relating to depreciation and an
explanation of the departure 15 given below

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certarn properties, derivative financial
instruments and the defined benefit section of the Company's pension scheme

Revenue recognitian
Revenue 15 recognised to the extent that the Company obtasns the right to consideration in exchange for its performance Revenue 1s measured at the
fair value of the consideration recewed, excluding discounts and VAT

Rental income
Rental income ansing from mvestment properties 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Interest recetvable
Interest receivable 1s recognised on an accruals basis

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Such
cost includes costs directly attnibutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s prowided on all plant, machinery and equipment at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less estimated residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the balance sheet date, of each asset evenly over its expected useful hife as follows

Plant, machinery and equipment — over 2 to b years
Depreciation 1s not provided on investment properties which are subject to annual revaluations

Long leasehold investment properttes

In accordance with SSAP19, investment properties are revalued annually and the aggregate surplus or temporary deficit 1s transferred to the
revaluation reserve Permanent diminutions are recognised through the profit and loss account No deprectation i1s provided in respect of
investment properties

The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated However, this requirement conflicts with the generally accepted accounting
pnnciple set out in SSAP19 The directors consider that, because these properties are not held for consumption but for thewr investment potential,
to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view and that it 1s necessary to adopt SSAP19 n order to give a true and fair view If this departure
from the Act had not been made, the profit for the financial year would have been reduced by depreciation However, the amount of depreciation
cannct reasonably be quantified because depreciation is only one of many factors reflected in the annual valuation and the amount which might
otherwise have been shown cannot be separately identified or quantified

Investment wn subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies

The investments 1n subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies are included 1n the Company’s balance sheet at the Company's share of net
asset value The valuation recognises the cost of acquisition and changes in the book values of the underlying net assets The surplus or deficit
ansing on revaluation 1s reflected n the Company's reserves

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all ttming differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or

events have occurred at that date that will result in an abligation to pay less or to recerve more tax, with the following exceptions

— provision 1s made for tax on gains ansing from the revaluation (and similar fair value adjustments) of fixed assets and gains on disposal of fixed
assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, there 15 a binding agreement to
dispose of the assets concerned However, no provision 1s made where, on the basis of all available evidence at the balance sheet date, 1t 1s more
likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged to tax only where the replacement assets are sold, and

- deferred tax assets are recognisad anly to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which timing differences reverse,
based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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{A). ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Interest
Interest paid s charged to the profit and loss account on an accruals basis

Finance costs of debt are allocated over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount

Share-based payment

When employee share options are exercised the employee has the chotce of whether to have the liability to them settled by way of cash or the
retention of shares As it has been the Company's practice to satisfy the majority of share options in cash and new shares are not issued to satisfy
employee share option plans the Company accounts for ifs share option schemes as cash-settled The cost of cash-settled transactions 18 measured at
fair value using an appropriate option pricing model and amortised through the income statement over the vesting period The Liability 1s remeasured
at each balance sheet date Rewvisions to the fair value of the accrued hablity after the end of the vesting period are recorded in the income statement
of the year in which they occur

Pensions
The Company operates a penston scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnibution sections The defined benefit section 15 closed to
new members and, from 1st September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which attributes entitiement to
benefits to the current pened (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligation) and 1s based on actuanial advice Past service costs are recogrnised 1n the profit and loss account immediately if the benefits

have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change In present value of scheme obligations The expected return on plan assets 1s
based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the fair value of
plan assets of contributions received and benefits paid duning the year The difference between the expected return on ptan assets and the interest
cost s recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account as other finance income or expense

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 1n full in the statement of total recognised gains and losses in the year in which they occur The defined
benefit pension asset or hability in the balance sheet comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less any past service cost not yet
recogmsed and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obhigations are to be settled directly

Contnbutions to defined contnibution schemes are recognised 1n the profit and loss account in the period in which they become payable

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Company uses denvative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate fluctuations Such
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date en which a contract i1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value The
Company has determined that the derwvative financial instruments 1n use do not qualify for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derwatives are taken to the profit and loss account

Full details of the Company's derivative financial instruments are given in Note 16 to the Group financial statements

Own shares
St Modwen Propertres PLC shares held by the Company are classified in shareholders’ equity and are recognised at cost

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are nitially recognised at fair value less directly attnbutable transaction costs After initial recognition, loans and borrowings
are measured at amortised cost

Gains and losses ansing on the repurchase, settlernent or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recogmised respectively tn finance income
and expense

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Cash flow statement
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS1 not to present a cash flow statement
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued
for the year ended 30th November 2010

(B). PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own profit and loss account in these financial
statements The Company's loss for the year ended 30 November 2010 was £22 3m (2002 £17 8m loss)

(C) OPERATING EXPENSES
(1} Audit fees
The analysis of auditors' remuneration 1s as follows

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Fees paid to Deloitte LLP in respect of
Fees payable for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 112 107
Total audit fees 112 107
Other services pursuant to legislation 9 305
Tax services 210 109
Total non-audit fees 261 414
Total fees 373 521

{11) Employees
The average number of full-time employees (Including executive directors) employed by the Company during the year were as follows

2010 2009

Number Number

Property 125 127
Leisure and other activities 41 38
Administration 39 40
205 205

2010 2009

£m £m

Wages and salarnes 94 81
Social security costs 12 10
Pension costs 03 07
109 98

(D) DIVIDENDS
Dividends paid during the year were in respect of the interim dividend for 2010 The propesed final dividend is subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting and has not been included as a hability in these financial statements

2010 2009

p per share £m p per share £m
Paid
Final dividend in respect of previous year — — — —
Interim dividend 1n respect of current year 1.0 20 — —
Total 10 20 — —_
Proposed
Current year final divdend 2.0 40 —_ —_

The Employee Benefit Trust waives its entitfement to dividends
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(E) TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Long Plant,
leasehold machinery
investment and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 30th November 2009 03 22 25
Additions — 02 02
At 30th November 2010 03 24 27
Depreciation
At 30th November 2009 — 18 18
Charge for the year — 03 03
Disposals — — —
At 30th November 2010 — 21 21
Net book value
At 30th November 2010 g3 03 06
At 30th November 2009 03 04 07

Investment properties were valued at 30th November 2010 and 2009 by King Sturge LLP, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value King Sturge LLP are professionally qualified
independent external valuers and have recent expenence in the relevant location and category of the properties being valued

Long leasehold investment properties are currently et under operating leases for the purpose of generating rental income

(F). INVESTMENTS HELD AS FIXED ASSETS

Investment Investment
in subsidiary in joint
companies ventures Total
£m £m £m
Valuation
At 30th November 2009 162 4 469 2393
Increase in entity holding from joint venture to subsidiary (14) o7 07
Revaluation of investments 835 64 899
At 30th November 2010 2745 540 3285
Cost

At 30th Novemher 2010 and 30th November 2009 762 265 1027
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(F). INVESTMENTS HELD AS FIXED ASSETS CONTINUED
Subsidiary companies
At 30th Novemnber 2010 the principal subsidianes, all of which were held directly by the Company, were as follows

Proportion of ordinary shares held Nature of princtpal business
Boughton Holdings 100% Investment company
Chaucer Estates Limited 100% Property investors
Leisure Living Limited 100% Letsure operator
Redman Heenan Properties Limited 100% Praperty investors
St Modwen Bevelopments Limited 100% Property developers
St Modwen Investments Limited 100% Property investors
St Modwen Securities Limited 100% Property developers
St Modwen Ventures Limited 100% Property investors
St Modwen Properttes Sarl 100% Property investors
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Limited 81% Property developers
Uttoxeter Estates Limited 81% Property developers
Widnes Regeneration Limited 81% Property developers
Trentham Leisure Lirmited 80% Leisure operator
MNorton & Proffitt Developments Limited 75% Praperty developers
VSM Estates {(Holdings) Limited 50% Property developers

All pnncipal subsidiaries are registered and operated in England and Wales

loint ventures
At 30th November 2010 the principal joint ventures were

Percentage shareholding Nature of principal business
Key Property Investments Limited 50% Property investment and development
Barton Business Park Limited 50% Property development
Sowcrest Limited 50% Property development
Holaw (462) Ltmited 50% Property investment
Skypark Bevelopment Partnership LLP 50% Property development
Chertsey Road Properties Limited 50% Property investment
St Modwen Developments Hungerford Limited 50% Property development

Many of the joint ventures contain change of control provisions, as 1s common for such arrangements

(G) DEBTORS

2010 2009

£m £m

Trade debtors Q1 01
Amounts due from subsidiaries 4374 446 9
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 126 50
Other debtors 68 78
Prepayments and accrued income an 26
Corporation tax 79 65
Deferred tax asset (see Note (1)) 57 61

4136 4750
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(H) CREDITORS
2010 2009
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors 14 11
Amounts due to subsidiaries 1123 1170
Amounts due to joint venture and associated companies 41 35
Other tax and social secunty 01 11
Other creditors 11 25
Accruals and deferred income 121 47
Denvative financial instruments 183 193
149 4 149 2
2010 2009
£m £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans 2145 1601
Other creditors — 12
Accruals and deferred income 16 09
2161 192 2
All bank borrowings are secured by a fixed charge over the property assets of the Company and its subsidiartes
{1). BORROWINGS
The matunty profile of the bank borrowings, all of which are wholly repayable within five years, 1S as follows
2010 2009
£m £Em
One to two years 400 625
Two to five vears 1745 127 6
Total 2145 1801
(}) DEFERRED TAXATION
The amounts of deferred taxation prowvided and unprovided In the accounts are
Provided Unprovided
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Capital allowances in excess of deprecration — 01 — _—
Other hming differences a7 (6 2) 08 09
[ ) 61) 08 0¢%
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{1) DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
Reconciliation of movement on deferred tax asset included in debtors

£m
Balance as at 30th November 2009 61)
Profit and loss account 04
Batance as at 30th November 2010 B7
Recanciliation of deferred tax liablity included in pension scheme asset
£m
Balance as at 3Cth November 2009 —
Profit and loss account —
Statement of total recognised gains and losses —_
Balance as at 30th November 2010 -
(K) SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary 10p shares
No £m
Authorised
Equity share capital
At start and end of year 250,000,000 250
AMlotted and fully paid
Equity share capital
At start and end of year 200,360,931 200
See Note 3d of the Group finrancial statements for details of outstanding optiens to acquire ordinary shares
(L) RESERVES
Capital Profit
Share premium redemption Revaluation & loss
account resarve reserve account Own shares
£m £m £m £m £m
At 30th November 2009 1028 03 le4 7 864 © 4)
Revaluation of investments {(Note F} — — 899 — ——
Retained loss for the year (Note B) — — — (22 3) —
Net share additions — — — — 0 2)
Dividends paid (Note D) — —_ — (2 0) —
Actuarial loss on pension scheme (Note M) — — — 1) —
At 30th November 2010 1028 03 2546 620 (0 6)

Qwn shares represent the cost of 259,414 (2009 273,330) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the shares held
at 30th November 2010 was £351,246 {2009 £580,280) In additien the Employee Benefit Trust has £0 Im (2009 £0 1m) of cash and £9 Om
(2008 £10 3m) due from the Company that can only be used for the benefit of employees
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(M). PENSIONS

The Company’s pension schemes are the principal pension schemes of the Group and details are set out In Note 18 of the Group financial statements
The directors are satisfied that this note, which contains the required 1AS19 “Employee Benefits” disclosures for the Group, also covers the
requirements of FRS17 “Retirement Benefits” for the Company

(N). OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments where the Company is the lessee

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2010 2009
Land and Land and
buildings Other buldings Other
£m £m £m £m
Operating leases which expire.
In one year or less — 01 — 01
Between one and five years — 03 — 06
In more than five years 05 — 05 —
05 04 05 07

(0) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has a joint and several unhimited liability with Ving) PLC and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of the financial
performance of VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited ("VSM™) This is a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and would require the guarantors to
step into VSM's place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL Completion of the project 1s not considered onerous as the forecast revenues
exceed the anticipated costs and it 1s not expected that there would be any net outflow in this regard

The Company 1s also party to a joint and several guarantee to Fortis Bank in respect of the performance of Sowcrest Limited which 1s limited to
£16 0m (2009 £18 4m)

Further, the Company guarantees the performance of its subsidiaries in the course of their usual commercial activities
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Independent Company Auditors’ Report
to the Members of St Modwen Properties PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements ot St Modwen Properties PLC for the year ended 30 November 2010 which comprise the
Company Balance Sheet and the related Notes A to O The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation 1s applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
Company's members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent company financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the parent company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclesures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on firancial statements
In our opinion the parent company financtal statements

s give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 November 2010 and of its loss for the year then ended,
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinian

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repaort to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

¢ the infermation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the parent
company financial statements

Matters on wiuch we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, tn our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent cempany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us, or

s the parent company financia! statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
acceunting records and returns, or

s certain disclosures of directers’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Gther matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of St Modwen Properties PLC for the year ended 30 November 2010

< G R
Stephen Gnggs FCA (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditer

Birmingham, UK
Ath February 2011
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Five Year Record

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

£m £m £m £m £m

Met rental iIncome* 332 349 332 335 337
Property profits/{losses)* 44 6 545 97 (8 2) t55
Revaluation surplus/(deficit)* 566 628 (64 6} (106 5) 294
Pre-tax profit/{loss}t 969 1001 (73 1} (119 4) 375
Earnings/{loss) per share {pence) 616 733 (37 3}t (59 7) 186
Dwidends paid per share (pence} 102 117 39 — 10
Dividend cover (times) 60 63 (11 0 — 186
Net assets per share (pence)$ 2453 284 1 251 4 200 1 2180
Increasef{decrease) on prior year 15% 16% (129%) (20%) 9%
Net assels employed
Investment properties 736 4 846 9 8143 7629 8280
Investments 779 754 64 2 413 49 4
Inventeries 659 2093 2281 1927 17116
Other net habilities {237 5) (262 0) (282 9) (277 1) (297 3)
Net borrowings {252 9) (401 9) (421 5) (318 8) {314 9)
Net assets 389 8 467 7 402 2 4010 436 8
Financed hy
Share capital 121 121 121 200 200
Reserves 3737 446 8 3807 3727 4078
Own shares (0 8} 07 (0 1) (0 4) (0 8)
Minaonty interests 48 95 95 87 96

3898 467 7 402 2 401 Q 436 8

*  Including share of joint ventures
+  Including post-tax profit of sunt ventures
§ 200G to Z0DB restated for comparability purpeses on the assumption that the 2009 Firm Placing and Placing and Opea Dffer hag eccurred on 1st December 2005

The figures above are all presented under IFRS
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the seventieth Annual General Meeting of St Modwen Properties PLC will be held at 12 noon on Tuesday 22nd March
2011 at the Marketing Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge Technology Park, Birmingham, B31 2TS for the following purposes

Ordinary Business
1 To recewe and adopt the report of the directors and the accounts for the year ended 30th November 2010

To declare a final dividend of 2p per share

To re-elect Steve Burke as a director

To re-elect Simen Clarke as a director

To re-elect Lady Kathenine Innes Ker as a director
To re-elect Lesley James as a director

To re-elect Bill Gliver as a director

To re-elect John Salmon as a director

Ww e N ™ R WwN

To elect Michael Dunn as a director

—
(=

To elect David Garman as a director

—
pary

To elect Bill Shannon as a director

—
[p¢]

To rezppoint Deloitte LLP as Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next General Meeting at which accounts are laid
and to authorise the directars to determine their remuneration

Special Business
To constder and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions

13 Ordinary Resolution
That the Directors’ remuneration report for the year ended 30th November 2010 be approved

14 Ordinary Resolution
That the authority to allot relevant secunities and equity securities conferred on the directors by Article 7 2 of the Company's Articles of
Assccration be and 1s hereby granted for the period ending on 22nd June 2012 or at the concluston of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held after the date of the passing of this Resolution (whichever is the earlier) and for such period the Section 551 amount shall
be £4,963,307

15 Special Resolution
That the power to allot relevant securities and equity securities conferred on the directors by Article 7 2 of the Company’s Articles of Associatien
be and 15 hereby granted for the peried ending on 22nd June 2012 or at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Compary to be held
after the date of the passing of this Resolution {whichever 1s the earhier) and for such period the Section 561 amount shall be £1,001,8058

16 Special Resolution
That, 1n accordance with Article 9 of its Articles of Association and Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company be and 15 hereby
granted general and unconditional authority to make market purchases (as defined in Section 693 of the Companies Act 2006) of any of Its
own ordinary shares on such terms and in such manner as the Board of directors may from time to time determine PROVIDED THAT the general
authority conferred by this Resolution shall

(a) be limited to 20,036,093 ordinary shares of 10p each,

{b} not permit the payment per share of more than 105% of the average middle market price quotation on the London Stock Exchange for the
ordinary shares on the five previous dealing days or less than 10p (in each case exclusive of advance corporation tax (if any) and expenses
payable by the Company), and

(c) expire on 22nd June 2012 or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held after the date of the passing
of this Resolution (whichever 1s the earlier), save that if the Company should before such expiry enter into a contract of purchase then the
purchase may be completed or executed wholly or partly after such expiry
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17 Special Resolution
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following as a special resolution

That a general meeting other than an annual general meeting may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

By order of the Board

.Sm\im

Reeta Stokes
Gompany Secretary
28th February 2011

Registered Office

Sir Stanley Clarke House
7, Ridgeway

Quinton Business Park
Birmingham B32 1AF

Explanatory notes to the Resolutions

1
2

Resolution 1 is to recewe the Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors for the year ended 30th November 2010

The performance of the Board as a whole, as well as the contribution made by the individual non-executive drrectors has been reviewed during the
course of the year After considening this evaluation, the Board believes that the individuals continue to demonstrate commitment to their roles
and that their respective skills complement each other to enhance the overall operation of the Board All of the directors offer themselves for re-
election, proposed through separate resolutions 3 to 8 Biographical details of these directors can be found on pages 28 and 29

Under the Company's Articles of Association, any director appointed by the Board since the date of the last Annual General Meeting may only
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting, at which time the director I1s required to stand for election by the shareholders Accordingly,
David Garman, Bill Shannon and Michael Dunn, having been appainted on 19th April, 1st November and 1st December 2010 respectively, offer
themselves for election, under resoluttons 9 to 11 Their biographies are shown on pages 28 and 29

Resolution 12 1s proposed to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors to hold office until the next general meeting of the Company at which accounts
are presented and to authonise the Directors to determine the level of the auditors’ remuneration

Resolution 13 18 to approve the Directors' Remuneration Report, which ts included on pages 38 to 43 and provides details of the Group's
remuneration policy for the directors and senior executives In accordance with sections 439 and 440 of the Companies Act 2006, the vote on
this resclution 1s advisory and no director’s remeuneration 1s conchitional upon the passing of this resolution

The existing general authority of the directors to allot shares and the current disapplication of the statutory pre-emption rights granted at the
Company's 2010 Annual General Meeting expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Article 7 2 of the Company's Articles of Association contains a general authority for the directors to allot shares in the Company for a period (not
exceeding five years} (“the prescnbed period”) and up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount (“the Section 551 amount”) appreved by a
Special or Qrdinary Resolution of the Company Article 7 2 also empowers the directors during the prescribed pericd to allot shares for cash in
connection with a nights 1ssue and also to atlot shares for cash in any other circumstances up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount approved
by a Special Resolution of the Company (“the Section 561 amount”)

Resolution 14, which will be preposed as an Ordinary Resolution, provides for the Section 551 amount to be £4,963,907 (being an amount
equal to the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company at the date of this report and representing 25% of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital at that date) The Board has no intention at present to exercise the authonty to allot shares under this resclution

Resolution 15, which will be proposed as a Special Resolution, provides for the Section 561 amount to be £1,001,805 (representing 5% of the
Company’s 1ssued share capital)

The prescribed period for which these powers and authonties are granted will expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held
next year or on 22nd June 2012 if earlier, when the directors intend to seek renewal of the authorities

Resolution 16 1s to renew the authority for the Company to purchase certain of 1ts own shares for a further year The directors behieve 1t is
advantageous to have such authority but would only exercise it 1f it was believed to be in the best interests of shareholders At present, the Board
has no intention to exercise the authonty
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8 Changes made to the 2006 Act by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations increase the notice period required for general meetings of the Company
to 21 clear days unless sharehalders approve a shorter notice peried, which cannot however be less than 14 clear days Annual General Meetings
(“AGM") will continue to be held on at least 21 clear days’ notice

Before the Sharehclders’ Rights Regulations came into force on 3 August 2009, the Company was able to call general meetings cther than AGMs
on 14 clear days' notice without obtaining such shareholder approval In order to preserve this ability, Resolution 17 seeks such approval The
approval will be effective until the Company's next AGM, when 1t 1s intendad that a similar reselution will be proposed

The following notes explain your general rights as a shareholder and your night to attend and vote at this AGM or to appoint someone else to vote
on your behalf

a) A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf A member may
appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting provsded that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different
share or shares of the member A proxy need not be a member but must attend the meeting in person  Proxy forms should be lodged with the
registrar’s office or submitted not fater than 48 hours before the time for which the meeting 18 convened Coempletion of the appropriate proxy
form does not prevent a member from attending and voting in person if he/she s entitled to do so and so wishes

by To be vahd, the Form of Proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which It s signed, or a notarially certified copy of
such power or authority, must be received by the Company's registrars before 12 noon on Sunday 20th March 2011, either in hard copy form
by post, by couner or by hand to the Company's registrars, Equimiti Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA

c} Any person to wham this notice I1s sent whe 1s a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy Information rnights
{"Nominated Person") may, under an agreement with the member who nominated him/her, have a right to be appointed, or have someone
else appointed, as a proxy for the meeting If 2 Nominated Person does not have this right or does not wish to exercise 1t, he or she may have
a right under such an agreement to give the member voting instructions

d) The statement of the nights of members in retation to the appointment of proxies in Note (a) does not apply to Nominated Persons

e) Asat 25th February 2011 {being the last working day prier to the publication of this notice), the Company's issued share capital consisted of
200,360,931 shares, carrying one vote each, which represents the total voling nights in the Company as at that date

f)  The following documents are available for inspection during normal business hours at the registered office of the Company on any business
day and may also be inspected at the Marketing Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbridge Technology Park, Birmingham, B31 2TS
at least 15 minutes prior to the commencement of, and during the continuance of, the Annual General Meeting

(1) copies of the Directors' service contracts with the Company,
(1} copies of the Non-Executive Directors' letters of appointment, and
(in) a copy of the Company’s Articles of Association

g) In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001, the Company gives notice that only those shareholders
entered on the relevant register of members (the “Register™) for certificated or uncertificated shares of the Company (as the case may be)
at 6 pm on Sunday 20th March 2011 {the “Specified Time"} will be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number of
shares registered 1n their name at the time Changes to entnes on the Register after the Specified Time will be disregarded in determining
the nights of any person to attend or vote at that meeting Should the meeting be adjourned to a time not more than 48 hours after the
Specified Time, that time will also apply for the purpose of deterriming the entittement of members to attend and vote {and for the purpose
of determining the number of votes they may cast) at the adjourned meeting Should the meeting be adjourned for a longer period, then fo be
so entitled, members must be entered on the Register at the time which 1s 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting or, If the
Company gives nctice of the adjourned meeting, at the time specified in the notice

h) Electronic proxy appointment through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the annual
general meeting and any adjournment{s) thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual CREST Personal Members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service prowider(s), should refer to therr CREST sponsor
or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be vahd, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST Proxy
Instruction’™) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's ("EUN") specifications and must contain
the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual {available at www euroclear com/CREST} The message,
regardless of whether 1t constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment te the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy
must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent {ID RA19) by the fatest time(s) for receipt of proxy
appointments specified in the notice of meeting For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the
timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this time any change of instructtons to proxies appointed through CREST should
be communicated to the appotntee through other means
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CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that EUI dees not make available special
procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and hmitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST
Proxy Instructions It I1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST perscnal member or
sponsored member or has appotnted a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such
actton as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any parhicular time In this connection,
CREST members and, where apphcable, therr CREST sponsors or voting service prowiders are referred, 1n particular, to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerning practical hmitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)a) of the Uncertificated Securnties
Regulations 2001

1} Representatives of shareholders that are corporations will have to produce evidence of their proper appeintment when attending the AGM  Please
contact our Registrars if you need any further guidance on this

1) Every shareholder has the right to appoint some other person{(s) of their choice, whe need not be a shareholder as his proxy to exercise all or any
of his rights, to attend, speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman, please insert
the name of your chasen proxy holder in the space provtded If the proxy 1s being appointed in relation to less than your full voting entitlement,
please enter in the box next to the proxy holder's name the number of shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy If left
blank your proxy will be deemed to be authorised 1n respect of your full voting entitlement (or if the proxy form has been issued In respect of a
designated account for a shareholder, the full voting entitlement for that designated account)

k) To appoint more than one proxy, (an) additional proxy form(s} may be obtained by contacting the Registrars’ helpline on 0871 384 2198 or you
may photocopy this form {calls to this number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline, other telephony provider costs may vary Overseas
callers should dial +44 121 415 7047 Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday) Please indicate in the box next to the proxy
holder's name the number of shares In relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy All forms must be signed and should be returned
together in the same envelope

I} Shareholders who would prefer to register the appointment of their proxy efectronically via the intermet can do so through the Sharevote website,
www sharevate co uk, using their perscnal Authentication Reference Number (this 1s the senes of numbers printed under the headings Voting ID,
Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number an the Proxy Form} Alternatively, shareholders who have already registered with Equimit: Registrars’
cnline portfolio service, Shareview, can appoint their proxy electranically by logging on to their portfolio at www shareview co uk and clicking on |
the link to vote under their St Modwen Properties PLC holding details Full details and instructions on these electronic proxy facilities are given !
on the respective websites

You may not use any electronic address provided in either this Notice of General Meeting or any related documents (including the Proxy Form) to
communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

m) Any shareholder attending the meeting has the right to ask questions The Company must cause to be answered any such question relating to
the bustness being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if {(a) to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the
meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a
question, or (¢) It 1S undesirable in the snterests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

n} A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found on the Company's website at
www stmodwen co uk
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Financial Statements
Glossary of Terms

Annuahised net rents are gross rents as at a reporting date plus, where
rent reviews are outstanding, any increases to estimated rental value
(as determined by the Group's external valuers), less any ground rents
payable under head leases

BREEAM — Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Methad — an industry-wide system of standards to assess sustatnable
developments and measure the environmental impact of buildings

Capital allowances deferred tax provision — In accordance with 1AS 12,
full provision has been made for the deferred tax ansing on the benefi of
capital allowances claimed to date However, in the Group's expenence,
the liabilities n respect of capital allowances provided are unlikely to
crystallise in practice and are therefore excluded when arriving at

EPRA NAY

Compulsery purchase order (CP0) 1s the compulsory acquisition of land
by a planning authority, undertaken n the public interest and with pre-
defined timescales and compensation arrangements

CSR — Corporate socia! respensibihity

EPRA is the European Public Real Estate Association — a body that has
put forward recommendations for best practice for financial reporting by
real estate companies

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV) s the balance sheet net assets,
excluding fair value adjustments for debt and related derivatives,
deferred taxatton on revaluation and capital aliowances

EPRA net assets per share 1s EPRA net assets divded by the diluted
number of shares at the period end

Estimated rental value (ERV) is the Group's external valuers' opinion as to
the open market rent which, on the date of valuation, could reasonably
be expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of the
property

Equivalent yield 1s a weighted average of the imitial yield and reversionary
yield and represents the return a property will produce based on the
timing of the income received

Gearing 1s the leve! of the Group’s bank borrowing (excluding finance
leases) expressed as a percentage of net assets

Hopper is the bank of property comprising all of the land under the
Group's control, whether wholly owned or through joint ventures or
development agreements

IFRS — International financial reporting standards

Inibal yield is the annuahised net rent expressed as a percentage of the
valuation

Interest cover 1s profit before interest and tax {excluding non-cash items
such as investment property revaluations) plus the realisation of previcus
years' revaluattons, as a percentage of net interest {excluding non-cash
items such as mark-to-market of interest rate swaps})

IPD 1s investment Property Databank Ltd , a company that produces an |
independent benchmark of property returns

Market value is an opinion of the best price at which the sale of an
interest 1n the property wouid complete unconditionally for cash
consideration on the date of valuation (as determined by the Group’s
external valuers)

In accordance with usual practice, the Group's external valuers repaort
valuations net, after the deduction of the prospective purchaser's costs,
including stamp duty, agent and legal fees

Marshalling 1s the process of progressing projects through planning and
development

Net rental income 15 the rental income receivable in the period after
payment of ground rents and net property outgorngs

Pre-sold projects are those projects where we are constructing buildings
that have been specified by, and designed for, or adapted by, a specific
chient under a specific construction centract Cn such projects, profit 1s
recognised using the stage completion method

Propenty profits includes profits made on sales of investment properties,
properttes held for sale and properties under construction

Rent roll is the gross rent plus rent reviews that have been agreed as at
the reporting date

Section 106 agreements are legally binding agreements reached with local
planning authonties under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 They address the impact of proposed developments on the local
community and often invelve a financial contributian by the developer

Voids is the estimated rental value of vacant properties expressed as a
percentage of the total estimated rental value of the portfolio, excluding
development properties

Weighted average debt matunity — Each tranche of Group debt 1s ‘
multiplied by the remaining period to its maturity and the result 1s
dwided by total Group debt in 1ssue at the period end

Weighted average interest rate 15 the Group loan interest and derivative
costs per annum at the peried end, divided by total Group debt in 1ssue
at the period end
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Annual General Meeting

22nd March 2011

Announcement of 2011 intenm results July 2011
Announcement of 2011 final results February 2012
Ordinary shareholdings at 30th November 2010
Shareholders Shares

No % No {(m} %
By shareholder
Directars and connected persons 26 039 53,403,706 26 65
Indwviduals 3,793 8243 12,221,276 610
Insurance companies, nominees and pension funds 682 1479 131,256,494 6551
Cther Imited companies and corporate bodies 110 2398 3,479,455 174

Shareholders Shares

No % No {m) %
By shareholding
Up to 500 1,118 2425 278,013 014
501 to 1,000 825 17 89 638,071 032
1,001 to 5,000 1,671 3624 3,873,975 193
5,001 to 10,000 420 911 3,029,388 151
10,001 to 50,000 356 772 7,532,349 376
50,001 to 100,000 68 147 4,983,697 249
100,001 to 500,000 85 184 19,741,993 9856
500,001 to 1,000,000 22 048 16,494,417 823
1,000,001 and above 16 100 143,789,028 7177

Registrars
The Regstrars to the Company are Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 60H
Shareholder enquiry hne 0871 384 2198

The Registrars’ website is www shareview co uk Registering on this website will enable you, amongst other features, to view your

St Modwen Properties PLC shareholding online

Share dealing service

Equinth offer a telephone and internet share dealing service which allows you to buy or sell St Modwen Properties PLC shares if you are a UK resident

Details can be found on their website www shareview co uk/dealing This arrangement 1s available at any time durng market
an easy and convenient facility to trade shares offering real ime prices through a range of market makers Full terms and co
avallable on the Shareview website To trade over the telephone, please call 08456 037037

trading hours and provides
nditions for this service are

Registered office Company number Joint Stockbrokers
Sir Stanley Clarke House 345201 JP Morgan Cazenove
7 Ridgeway Numis Securities
Quinton Business Park Website

Birmingham www stmodwen co uk

B32 1AF

This annwal report 15 printed on Claro Silk, comprising fibres sourced frem
sustainable forest reserves and bleached without the use of chlornine The
production mull for this paper cperates to EMAS, 1SO 14001 envircnmental
and IS0 8001 qualty standards
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Development Projects

NORTH WEST
NEWTON-LE-WILLOWS
—Vulcan Works
GLASGOW

— Pegasus Business Park
— Springburn
PRESTON

— Channel Way
BLACKBURN

— Evolution Park
SKELMERSDALE

— Town Centre
EGCLES

— Lankro Way

WIGAN

— Enterprise Park
MANCHESTER

— Wythenshawe

— Trafford Park

- Openshaw
LIVERPOOL

-- East Lanes Road

— Great Homer Street
WIDNES

— Economic Development Zone
— Town Centre

WARRINGTON
— Tndent Business Park

PRESCOT
GONNAH'S QUAY
ELLESMERE PORT
BURNLEY

YORKSHIRE & NORTH EAST

DARLINGTON

— Whessoe Road
SUNDERLAND

HULL

— Melton Park

DONGASTER
— Worcester Avenue
— Parkside

LINCOLN

NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE

STOKE-ON-TRENT

— Etruria Valley, Festival Park

— Trentham Lakes

- Fenton 25 & Berryhill

- Phoenix Park

— Blythe Vale Business Park

- Victona Park

— Nile Street

— The Trentham Estate &
Gardens

STONE
— Meaford Business Park

MIDLANDS

DERBY
— Hifton Depot

STAFFORD
- Lichfield Road
-5t Leonard’s

BURTON-UPON-TRENT

— Barton Business Park

- Branston

— Pirellr

WOLVERHAMPTON

— Goodyear

TELFORD

— Brockton Business Park
- Queensway Business Park
WALSALL

- St Matthew’s Quarter

— Pelsall Road

BERMINGHAM

— Washwood Heath

- Quinton Business Park
LONGBRIDGE

RUGBY

— Mill Road

— Newbold Read
WORCESTER

— Shrub Hill Industrial Estate
— Blackpole Trading Estate
— Great Western Business Park
- Gregorys Bank

- Taylors Lane
STRATFORD-UPON-AVON

- Long Marston

GOVENTRY

— Whittey Business Park
CANNOGK

- Hednesford Town Centre
— Pye Green

— Wathing Street
NOTTINGHAM

— Bestwood Business Park

SOUTH WEST & SOUTH WALES
GLOUCESTER
— Quedgeley Business Park

KEWPORT, GWENT

- Glan Llyn (Llanwern)
- Celtic Business Park
DURSLEY

- Litttecombe
AVONMOUTH, BRISTOL

- Access 18

TAUNTON

- Langford Mead

- Firepool

NEATH

— Coed Darcy

EXETER

— Skypark

PORT TALBOT

— Baglan Bay

WESTON-SUPER-MARE
— Westlands
— Locking Parklands

SWANSEA
— Transit (Swansea University)

CLEVERON
— Clevedon Business Park

NORTHERN HGME GOUNTIES
CRANFIELD
— Technology Park

BEDFORD
— Thurleigh Arrfield
— Town Centre

ENFIELD

— Edmonton Green Town Centre
MILTON KEYNES

— Stratford Road

HATFIELD

- Town Centre

LETCHWORTH

— Letehworth Business Park
LUTON

- Guildford Street

HEMEL HEMPSTEAD
— Maxsted Park

LONDON & SOUTH EAST
MILL HILL

— Inghs Barracks
UXBRIDGE

— RAF Uxbridge
THURROCK

— South Ockendon
LONDON

— Elephant & Castle
~ Leegate

— Wembley Central
— Hounslow

WOKING

— The Planets
BRIGHTON

- Woodingdean
FARNBOROUGH

— Town Centre
GUIEDFORD

-- Henley Industnal Estate
YALDING

— Syngenta
EASTLEIGH

— Campbell Road
POOLE

— Discaovery Court
ESSEX

— South Ockendon

SURREY
— Copthorne
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St Modwen's reports and publications are
available to view cnline or download from
www stmodwen co uk

You can order St Modwen's printed
publications, free of charge from

UK and Rest of World

Sir Stanley Clarke House
7 Ridgeway

Quinton Business Park
Birmingham

B32 1AF

Industrial Retail

St Modwen’s reports and publications are available to view online or
download from www stmodwen co uk

Registered office

Sir Stanley Clarke House
7 Ridgeway

Quinton Business Park
Birmingham

B32 1AF
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ST. MODWEN
PROPERTIES PLC
Company Number 349201

HEAD OFFICE & MIDLANDS
REGIONAL OFFICE

Sir Stanley Clarke House
7 Ridgeway

Quinton Business Park
Birmingham

B32 1AF

0121 222 9400

www stmodwen co uk
info@stmodwen co uk

REGIONAL OFFICES

LONDON & SOUTH EAST

180 Great Portland Street
London

WI1W 5Q7

020 7788 3700

SOUTH WEST & SOUTH WALES

Green Court

King's Weston Lane
Avonmouth

Bristo!

BS11 8AZ

0117 316 7780

YORKSHIRE & NORTH EAST
Ground Floor, Unit 2
Landmark Court
Elland Road

Leeds

LS11 8JT

0113 272 7070

NORTH STAFFORDSHERE

The Trentham Estate
Management Suite
Stone Road
Trentham
Stoke-on-Trent

ST4 8AX

01782 281844

NORTH WEST

Chepstow House
Trident Business Park
Daten Avenue

Risley

Warrington

WA3 6BX

01925 825850

ST. MODWEN PROPERTIES PLC

www stmodwen co uk

NORTHERN HOME GOUNTIES

First Floor, Unit E1
The Courtyard
Alban Park
Hatfield Road

St Albans
Hertfordshire

AL4 OLA

01727 732690

STOCK CODE SMP



